

Education/Licensing Committee Meeting Materials

BRN Education/Licensing Committee | October 21, 2025

Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025

Table of Contents

4.0	disc com	tems for consideration within this agenda number will be liscussed and voted upon as consent agenda items unless a committee member or member of the public state that they wish to bull one or more items out for further discussion and/or separate ote.							
	4.1	4.1 Discussion and possible action regarding whether to recommend approval of the proposed curriculum revisions and clinical facilities and to acknowledge the receipt of program progress reports							
	4.2		Discussion and possible action regarding whether to recommend continuing approval of approved nursing programs						
		Prelice	nsure nursing programs						
		4.2.1	University of San Diego Entry Level Master's Degree Nursing Program						
		4.2.2	California State University Fresno Baccalaureate Degree Nursing Program						
		4.2.3 4.2.4 4.2.5	Career Care Institute Associate Degree Nursing Program Chaffey College Associate Degree Nursing Program East Los Angeles College Associate Degree Nursing Program						
		4.2.6	Unitek College Baccalaureate Degree Nursing Program						
			Advanced practice nurse practitioner nursing programs						
		4.2.7	University of California San Francisco, AGACNP, AGPCNP, AGPCNP, FNP, NNP, PMHNP, PNPAC, PNPPC Nurse Practitioner Programs						
	4.3	approv practiti	sion and possible action regarding whether to recommend val of clinical practice experience required for nurse oner students enrolled in non-California based nurse oner education programs (16 CCR § 1486)	46					
		4.3.1 4.3.2 4.3.3 4.3.4 4.3.5	ASC Post University, Waterbury, CT University of Arizona, Tucson, AZ University of Arizona, Tucson, AZ Chamberlain University, Chicago, IL University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, PA						

Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025

Table of Contents

5.0

		The Ohio State University, Columbus, OH Yale University, West Haven, CT					
pres		nsideration within this agenda number will be the committee members for discussion and voted ually.					
5.1		sion and possible action regarding prelicensure nursing ns in non-compliance.	51				
	5.1.1	Merritt College, Associate Degree Nursing Program (two years with non-compliances following a BRN continuing approval visit)					
5.2		sion and possible action regarding a request for an nent increase for an approved prelicensure nursing m	60				
	REGIO	N 7 Inland Empire					
	5.2.1	California Baptist University Baccalaureate Degree and Entry-Level Master's Degree Nursing Program (enrollment increase)					
	REGIO	N 9 Orange					
	5.2.3	University of California Irvine Baccalaureate Degree and Entry Level Master's Degree (enrollment increase)					
5.3		sion and possible action regarding a request to grant approval of a new prelicensure nursing program	87				
	REGION 3 San Francisco Bay						

Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025

Table of Contents

5.3.1 Unitek College, Baccalaureate Degree Nursing Program (secondary site San Jose)



Agenda Item 4.1

Discussion and possible action regarding whether to recommend approval of the proposed curriculum revisions and clinical facilities and to acknowledge the receipt of program progress reports

BRN Education/Licensing Committee | October 21, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Education/Licensing Committee Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 4.1 DATE: October 21, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action regarding whether to recommend

approval of the proposed curriculum revisions and clinical facilities and to acknowledge the receipt of program progress

reports

Schools are identified within the meeting materials in tables titled

Prelicensure Curriculum Changes, Progress Reports, and

Clinical Agency or Facility Approvals

REQUESTED BY: Mary Ann McCarthy, Supervising Nursing Education Consultant

BACKGROUND: Curriculum of a nursing program shall meet the requirements set forth in 16 CCR § 1426 and shall be approved by the Board. Additionally, any revised curriculum shall be approved by the Board prior to its implementation. According to Board policy, Nursing Education Consultants (NEC) may review curriculum changes that do not significantly alter philosophy, objectives, or content and programs can implement, as needed, prior to Board approval. These requests are then reported to the Education/Licensing Committee and the Board for approval.

In accordance with <u>16 CCR § 1427</u> a nursing program shall not utilize any agency of facility for clinical experience without prior approval by the Board. Each program must submit evidence that it has complied with the requirements set forth by the board and shall only assign students to facilities that can provide the experiences necessary to meet the program's written objectives for student clinical learning experiences.

The NECs review all curriculum changes, progress reports and clinical agency and facility approvals. Upon review, the NEC assist nursing education programs in eliminating education barriers and course or content redundancies and support efforts in the development and use of effective instructional methods and delivery models. These requests are reported to the Education/Licensing Committee and the Board for approval.

A list of schools who have submitted Curriculum changes, Program Progress Reports, and Clinical Agency or Facility Approvals, that have been reviewed for implementation by the NECs, are in your materials packet. These are consent agenda items.

NEXT STEP: Place on Board Agenda.

PERSON TO CONTACT: Mary Ann McCarthy, EdD, MSN, RN, PHN

Supervising Nursing Education Consultant

	Prelicensure Curriculum Changes Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025				
SCHOOL NAME	APPROVED BY NEC	Date	FULL COMPLIANCE REPORT		
ELM (alpha a-z)					
California Baptist University	H. Hunter	09/15/2025	Program Request –Updated numbering, units and direct patient care hour allocation. Rationale for Revision – Enrollment Increase review triggered revisions needed. Enrollment Pattern – 40 students, 1x a year Current Enrollment – 41 students Accredited By – Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE) Last Accreditation Visit – Spring 2023 This was a joint visit with CCNE NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2023-2024 = 95.12% 2024-2025 = 95% Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years: 2022-23 = 10% 2023-24 = 72.5% Consortium – Yes-Inland Empire Consortium Matriculation Agreements-No Concurrent Enrollments – No Total Cost of Program. \$95,000 Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations		
University of California Irvine	M. Johnson	09/03/2025	Program Request – Include theory portion to preceptorship course, increasing total units to 5 and increases units required for degree by 1 unit. Rationale for Revision – To meet compliance of having a theory course concurrent with clinical experience. Enrollment Pattern – 40 students, 1 time per year Current Enrollment – 81 Accredited – Yes, CCNE Last Accreditation Visit – Fall 2023		

Prelicensure Curriculum Changes						
	Education/Licensing Committee					
October 21, 2025						
			This was a joint visit – Yes NCLEX-RN Pass Rates 2022-23 = 94.74% 2023-24 = 94.44% Attrition Per Annual School Survey 2022-23 = 0% 2023-24 = 0% Consortium – Yes, Orange County Long Beach Consortium (OCLB) Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With – No			
			Total Cost of Program - \$73,858			
University of the Pacific	K. Daugherty	08/12/2025	Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations Program Request - Resequencing fifth and sixth trimesters for all January entering cohorts forward effective Spring 2026. Maintain existing approved 2024 curriculum sequence for August admitted cohorts. Rationale for Revision - Better align availability of school based public health clinical experiences to maintain quality public health experiences for cohorts starting each January. Enrollment Pattern - 60 twice a year (January and August); 120 annually. Current total program enrollment-218 students Accredited – Yes, CCNE Last Accreditation Visit-initial - October 2023; next visit fall 2028 This was a joint visit - No NCLEX RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2023-2024 = 97.22% 2024-2025 = 97.56% Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years 2022-2023 = no data to report 2023-2024 = 2.5% Consortium - Sacramento Academic-Clinical Alliance for Nursing Education (SACANE) Matriculation and or Concurrent Enrollment - No			

Prelicensure Curriculum Changes Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025				
			Total Cost of Program - \$106,255	
DCM (alpha a 7)			Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations	
BSN (alpha a-z) American University of Health Sciences	K. Daughety	09/16/2025	Program Request - Updated curriculum forms including the direct patient care hour allocation. Rationale for Request - Forms reflective of BPC 2786 minimum of 500 direct patient care hours data. Enrollment Pattern - 2x year; annual enrollment of 120 students Total Enrollment - 272 Accredited – Yes, CCNE Last Accreditation Visit - Fall 2016 This was a joint visit - No NCLEX Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 84.34% 2023-2024 = 90.41% Attrition Rates Per BRN Annual School Survey Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 27.6% 2023-24 = 16.98% Consortium(s) - Orange County/Long Beach Consortium for Nursing Matriculation Agreements - No Concurrent Enrollment - No	
			Total Cost of Program - \$112,455 Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations	
California Baptist University	H. Hunter	09/15/2025	Program Request –Updated numbering, units and direct patient care hour allocation. Rationale for Revision – Enrollment Increase review triggered revisions needed. Enrollment Pattern – 98 students, 2x a year Current Enrollment – 586 students Accredited By - CCNE Last Accreditation Visit – Spring 2023 This was a joint visit with CCNE	

Prelicensure Curriculum Changes					
	Education/Licensing Committee				
	October 21, 2025				
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years		
			2023-2024 = 91.53%		
			2024-2025 = 83.00%		
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years:		
			2022-23 = 1.5%		
			2023-24 = 7.5%		
			Consortium – Yes-Inland Empire Consortium		
			Matriculation Agreements - No		
			Concurrent Enrollments – No		
			Total Cost of Program - \$184,000		
			Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations		
California State University	K. Daugherty	09/12/2025	Program Request - Updated curriculum forms including the direct		
Sacramento			patient care hour allocation and revised CSU System GE categories		
			changes.		
			Rationale for the Revision - Part of CCNE continuous improvement		
			progress report (CIPR) review processes, curriculum forms update		
			aligns GE course categorizations with CSU system, community college		
			system, and UC system.		
			Enrollment Pattern - 2x a year, 80 each Fall and Spring semesters; a		
			total of 160 annually Total Enrollment - 288 students		
			Accredited – Yes, CCNE		
			Last Accreditation Visi t- Fall (October) 2019 This was a joint Visit - No		
			NCLEX Pass Rates for Past 2 Years		
			2022-23 = 94.85%		
			2023-24 = 97.78%		
			2024-2025 = 96.62%		
			Attrition Rates Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years		
			2022-23 = 13.8%		
			2023-2024 = 10.4%		
			Consortiums - Sacramento Academic Clinical Alliance for Nursing		
			Education (SACANE) and the Sacramento clinical Psych/MH regional		
I		1	Ludeation (SACANE) and the Saciamento clinical Esych/Min regional		

Prelicensure Curriculum Changes Education/Licensing Committee				
October 21, 2025				
			planning group Matriculation Agreements – Yes, American River, Sacramento City, and Sierra Colleges. Concurrent Enrollment - No Total Cost of Program - \$36,416 Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations	
Chamberlain University, Irwindale	S. dela Rosa	09/11/2025	Program Request: Curriculum revision that includes revised general education courses and adjusted prerequisites for select nursing courses. Rationale for Revision: "The proposed curriculum change aims to better support students early in their academic journey." Enrollment Pattern – 30 students 6 times per year for an annual enrollment of 180 students. Enrollment increase granted February 2025. Current enrollment – 309 students Accredited – Yes, CCNE Last Accreditation Visit – Spring 2024 This was a joint visit - Yes NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = No graduates 2023-24 = 89.29% Attrition Rates 2022-23 = No graduates 2023-24 = 7.5% Consortium – No Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No Total Cost of Program - \$108,015.00 Program is in compliance with BRN regulations	
Chamberlain University, Rancho Cordova	S. dela Rosa	09/11/2025	Program Request: Curriculum revision that includes revised general education courses and adjusted prerequisites for select nursing courses. Rationale for Revision: "The proposed curriculum change aims to better support students early in their academic journey" Enrollment Pattern – 80 students 3 times per year for an annual enrollment of 240 students.	

Prelicensure Curriculum Changes					
Education/Licensing Committee					
October 21, 2025					
			Current enrollment – 557 students		
			Accredited – Yes, CCNE		
			Last Accreditation Visit – Spring 2024		
			This was a joint visit - Yes		
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates		
			2022-23 = 88.08%		
			2023-24 = 92.18%		
			Attrition Rates		
			2022-23 = 7.9 % 2023-24 = 7.6%		
			Consortium – Yes, Rancho Cordova Academic-Clinical Alliance for		
			Nursing Education (SACANE)		
			Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No		
			Total Cost of Program - \$108,015.00		
			Program is in compliance with BRN regulations		
Carrington College formerly	MJ Rosenblatt	09/09/2025	Program Request: Add college level algebra and separate obstetrics and		
known as San Joaquin			pediatrics nursing theory and clinical from combined courses.		
Valley College			Rationale for Revision – Reduction of specialty theory to clinical in		
			specialty content area and adding college algebra will reduce burden of		
			student cost and aims to increase student success.		
			Enrollment Pattern at each of three campuses – 36 students 2 times per		
			year, Fall and Spring, and 30 students in winter term for a total of 102		
			students per year. The total program enrollment is 306 students annually.		
			Current Enrollment - 425 total		
			Accredited - No NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years		
			2022-23 = 100%		
			2023-24 = 92.5%		
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey		
			2021-22 = 0.0%		
			2022-23 = 0.9%		
			Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No agreements		

	Prelicensure Curriculum Changes Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025			
			Total Cost of Program - \$68,000	
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations.	
Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts Concord	K. Daugherty	08/29/2025	Program Request - Update curriculum forms to show same BSN degree courses/curriculum implemented at the Concord and San Jose secondary campuses. Rationale for Revision - Curriculum forms revised to document implementation of same BSN program curriculum at Concord and San Jose campuses. Enrollment Pattern - January 2026 forward, 3x annually (January 56, May-28, and September-28 students). A total of 112 students annually. Current enrollment-1x in 2025-up to 56 new students for September 2025 at San Jose campus. Accredited - No Last Accreditation Visi t- None This was a joint Visit - No NCLEX Pass Rates for Main Concord Campus 2022-23 = 87.76% 2022-23 = 87.76% 2023-24 = 78.57% 2024-25 = 93.41% Attrition Rates Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 9.8% 2023-24 = 9.9% Consortium - Greater Bay Area Academic Practice Partner Clinical Practice Placement System Matriculation and or Concurrent Enrollment With - No Total Cost of the Program - \$143,200 Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations	
Samuel Merritt	MA. McCarthy	06/30/2025	Program Request – To align with accreditation standards set by CCNE and the American Association of Colleges of Nursing (AACN) New Essentials Competency-Based Education Rationale for Revision – "the emerging trends in healthcare have required updated skills and knowledge, and feedback from our clinical partners have shown gaps in the knowledge, skills and attitudes of our students'	

Prelicensure Curriculum Changes					
Education/Licensing Committee					
October 21, 2025					
	education."				
	Enrollment Pattern - BSN Oakland – 88 students twice a year. 176				
	students annually				
	Current Enrollment – 272 students				
	Accredited - Yes, CCNE				
	Last Accreditation Visit – 10/2020				
	NCLEX-RN Pass Rates				
	2022 - 2023 = 82.1%				
	2023 - 2024 = 84.0%				
	Attrition Per Annual School Survey				
	2022-2023 = 2.6%				
	2023-2024 = 3.9%				
	Consortium – Greater Bay Area Academic Practice Consortium				
	Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With – No				
	Total Cost of Program - \$132,800				
	Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations				

University of California Irvine	M. Johnson	09/02/2025	Program Request – Include theory portion to preceptorship course, increasing total units to 5, and the reallocation of courses required for RN licensure and degree-granting. Rationale for Revision – To meet compliance of having a theory course concurrent with clinical experience and to create balance for courses required for licensure and degree-granting. Enrollment Pattern – 50 students, 1 time per year Current Enrollment – 98 Accredited – Yes, CCNE Last Accreditation Visit – Fall 2023 This was a joint visit – Yes NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 86% 2023-24 = 95.83% Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 4% 2023-24 = 12% Consortium – Yes, Orange County Long Beach Consortium Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With – No Total Cost of Program - \$76,321
ABN1/11			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
ADN (alpha a-z)		07/00/0007	
Antelope Valley College	H. Hunter	07/23/2025	Program Request –Curriculum forms updated to reflect current curriculum. Rationale for Revision –Continuing approval visit review found course numbering and unit changes. Enrollment Pattern – 102 students a year=40 generic 2x yr and 22 LVN students 1x yr Current Enrollment – 173 students Accredited By - No Last Accreditation Visit – N/A This was a joint visit – N/A NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2023-24 = 96% 2024-25 = 97.14%

Г			
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years:
			2022-23 = 0%
			2023-24 = 8.5%
			Consortium - No
			Matriculation Agreements with Grand Canyon University
			Concurrent Enrollments – 1
			Total Cost of Program. \$5979
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Butte College	K. Daugherty	09/18/2025	Program Request - Update curriculum forms with first series of
			California Community College Chancellor's Office (CCCCO) common
			course title and numbering changes for Fall 2025.
			Rationale for Revision - Align with CCCCO for common course
			numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-granting.
			Enrollment Pattern - generic 2x a year 60 students; total of 120
			annually. For accelerated track 1x a year - 48 students annually.
			Current enrollment - 266 students
			Accredited - No
			Last Accreditation Visit - None
			This was a joint visit - No
			NCLEX Pass Rates for Past 2 Years
			2022=23 = 85.83%
			2023-2024 = 89.94%
			Attrition Rates Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years
			2022-23 = 2.5%
			2023-2024 = 1.6%
			Consortium(s) - No
			Matriculation Agreement with CSU Chico
			Concurrent enrollment - No
			Total Cost of the Program - Generic \$8,180; Accelerated track-\$6,800
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Cabrillo College	MJ.	06/25/2025	Program Request – Update curriculum forms with first series of CCCCO
	Rosenblatt		common course title and numbering changes.
			Rational for Revision - Align with CCCCO for common course
			numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-
			granting.Enrollment Pattern – 32 students 2 times per year.
			Current Enrollment – 112

			A P(1 A)
			Accredited - No
			Last approval visit - February 2025
			This was a joint visit - No
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years NCSBN only - No quarter
			results. No program self-reported. (only needed if request is to address a
			low pass rate)
			2022-23 = 93.94%
			2023-24 = 84.09 %
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey
			2021-22 = 4.3%
			2022-23 = 5.3%
			Consortium – No local consortium
			Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No
			Total Cost of Program. \$10,193
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Chaffey College	H. Hunter	8/13/2025	Program Request –Curriculum forms updated to reflect current
, cg			curriculum.
			Rationale for Revision –Continuing approval visit review found course
			numbering and unit changes.
			Enrollment Pattern – 40 students, 2x a year
			Current Enrollment – 157 students
			Accredited By – Accreditation Commission for Education in Nursing
			(ACEN)
			Last Accreditation Visit – Fall 2017
			This was a joint visit - No
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years
			2023-24 = 97.10%
			2024-25 = 93.24%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years:
			2022-23 = 9.5%
			2023-24 = 7.4%
			2023-24 - 7.4% Consortium - No
			Matriculation Agreements-No
			Concurrent Enrollments – Yes- Cal State San Bernardino, Loma Linda,
			Grand Canyon University, Azusa Pacific University, Aspen University
			Total Cost Of Program - \$7000

			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
College of the Sequoias	L. Kennelly	08/18/2025	Program Request – Update curriculum forms with first series of CCCCO
			common course title and numbering changes.
			Rationale for Revision – Align with CCCCO for common course
			numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-granting.
			Enrollment Pattern – 90 students twice a year and 20 students every
			other year for year-round program only.
			Current Enrollment – 361 students
			Accredited –Yes
			Last Accreditation Visit – Spring 2025
			This was a joint visit - Yes
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates For Past 2 Years
			2022-23 = 95.1%
			2023-24 = 86.9%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey (For Past 2 Years)
			2022-22 = 4.4%
			2023-24 = 1.7%
			Consortium – Yes, Central San Joaquin Valley Clinical Education
			Collaborative
			Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With – Yes, Matriculation
			Agreement with University of Phoenix
			Total Cost of Program - \$6,094.41
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Hartnell College	H. Hunter	07/17/2025	Program Request – Update curriculum forms with first series of CCCCO
			common course title and numbering changes.
			Rationale for Revision- Align with CCCCO for common course
			numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-granting.
			Enrollment Pattern – 50 students, 1x a year in the Fall
			Current Enrollment – 51 students
			Accredited By - ACEN
			Last Accreditation Visit – Fall 2021
			This was a joint visit with ACEN
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 82.50%
			2022-23 = 82.50%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years:

		1	
			2022-23 = 2.4%
			2023-24 = 2.2%
			Consortium - No
			Matriculation Agreements-CSUMB
			Concurrent Enrollments – No
			Total Cost Of Program - \$6660
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Los Angeles Harbor College	M. Johnson	08/22/2025	Program Request – Update curriculum forms with first series of CCCCO
			common course title and numbering changes.
			Rationale for Revision- Align with CCCCO for common course
			numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-granting.
			Enrollment Pattern – 40 students, 2 times a year
			Current Enrollment – 146 students
			Accredited By - ACEN
			Last Accreditation Visit – February 2018
			This was not a joint visit with ACEN
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years
			2022-23 = 93.48%
			2023-24 = 100%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years:
			2022-23 = 21%
			2023-24 = 32%
			Consortium – No
			Concurrent Enrollments – No
			Total Cost of Program - \$7,000
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Los Angeles Pierce College	K. Knight	08/25/2025	Program Request – Changes to End of Program Student Learning
Los Angeles Pierce College	K. Kiligit	00/23/2023	
			Outcomes (EPSLOs).
			Rationale for Revision –To create curriculum maps to identify course
			and student learning outcomes in alignment with the updated National
			League for Nursing (NLN) 2025 verbiage.
			Enrollment Pattern – 40 students 2 times per year.
			Current Enrollment: 129
			Accredited - No
			Last Accreditation Visit – Not Accredited
			This was a joint visit – No

			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates:
			2022-23 = 89.2%
			2023-24 = 100%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey:
			2021-22 = 36.4%
			2022-23 = 40.3%
			Consortium – None
			Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With – Yes, California State
			University Channel Islands
			Total Cost of Program. \$7000.00
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Los Angeles Trade Tech	MA. McCarthy	08/23/2025	Program Request – Curriculum form updated to reflect changes to
College			course units, course removals, and the addition of noncredit supervised
			tutoring support courses."
			Rationale for Revision – "strengthen our program and better prepare our
			students for NCLEX success and professional nursing practice."
			Enrollment Pattern – 40 students 2x a year. 80 students annually
			Current Enrollment - 142
			Accredited - No
			Last Accreditation Visit - Not accredited
			This was a joint visit - No
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates
			2023-24 = 93.62%
			2024-24 = 91.78%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey
			2022-23 = 32.1%
			2023-24 = 3.6%
			Consortium – Yes. Centralized Clinical Placement System (CCPS) and
			My Clinical Exchange.
			Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - Yes
			Cal State LA, Cal State Fullerton, Cal State Northridge, Cal State
			Dominquez, Grand Canyon University
			Total Cost of Program - \$5000
<u> </u>		00/0//0005	Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Moorpark College	M. Johnson	08/04/2025	Program Request – Update course numbering and general education
			pattern, slightly changing units required for licensing, and redistributing

			direct patient care hours. Rationale for Revision – Streamline curriculum to align with recent college-wide and non-nursing discipline updates and reallocate direct patient care hours into nursing content areas specific to student needs. Enrollment Pattern – 44 students, 2 times a year Current Enrollment – 148 students Accredited - Last Accreditation Visit – February 2020 This was not a joint visit with ACEN NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 100% 2023-24 = 98.39% Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 2 Years: 2022-23 = 25% 2023-24 = 13% Consortium – Yes, with Ventura County Regional Planning workgroup, CCPS, and MyClinicalExchange Matriculation Agreements with CSUCI, CSUN, University of Phoenix, GCU, Chamberlain University, National University, and Azusa Pacific University Concurrent Enrollments – No Total Cost of Program. \$7,000
Ohlone College	K. Knight	08/29/25	Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations Program Request – Update curriculum forms with first series of CCCCO common course title and numbering changes. Rationale for Revision- Align with CCCCO for common course numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-granting. Enrollment pattern - 40 students per year Current enrollment - 63 students Accredited By - Accreditation Commission for Education in Nursing (ACEN) Last Accreditation Visit - Fall 2018 NCLEX-RN Pass Rates: 2022-23 = 73.5% 2023-24 = 88.6% Attrition:

			2022-23 = 0.0%
			2023-24 = 3.2%
			Consortium - None
			Matriculation Agreements – CSUEB, University of Phoenix
			Concurrent Enrollment - CSUEB
			Total Cost of Program - \$5000
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Santa Ana College	K. Knight	08/26/2025	Program Request – Update curriculum forms with first series of CCCCO
_	_		common course title and numbering changes.
			Rationale for Revision- Align with CCCCO for common course
			numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-granting.
			Enrollment Pattern – 100 students per year, 60 in Fall, 40 in Spring
			Current Enrollment – 195
			Accredited By – ACEN
			Last Accreditation Visit – 03/02/2023
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates:
			2022-23 = 90.7%
			2023-24 = 96.7%
			Attrition:
			2022-23 = 5.8%
			2023-24 = 5.1%
			Consortium: Orange County Long Beach Consortium for Nursing
			Matriculation Agreements – California State University Fullerton
			Concurrent Enrollments – CSU Fullerton and Grand Canyon University
			Total Cost of Program – \$5790.00
			Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Santa Barbara City College	L. Kennelly	08/01/2025	Program Request – Update curriculum forms with first series of CCCCO
Santa Barbara City College	L. Kerinelly	00/01/2023	
			common course title and numbering changes.
			Rationale for Revision- Align with CCCCO for common course
			numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-granting.
			Enrollment Pattern – 32 generic entry students twice a year, and 10
			bridge students every fall.
			Current Enrollment - 137 students
			Accredited - Yes, ACEN.
			Last Accreditation Visit – Spring 2025
			This was a joint visit - Yes

Sierra College	L. Kennelly	05/27/2025	NCLEX-RN Pass Rates 2022-23 = 93.85% 2023-24 = 98.04% Attrition Per Annual School Survey 2021-22 = 0% 2022-23 = 1.7% Consortium – No Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No Total Cost of Program - \$8,500 Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations Program Request – The revised curriculum includes the addition of four one-unit courses: Dosage Calculations, IV Therapy, Pharmacology, and Professionalism. Rationale for Revision – These courses were incorporated to increase the total semester units, allowing nursing students to meet the full-time enrollment requirements necessary for financial aid eligibility and aims to enhance student competency and support academic and clinical success. Enrollment Pattern – 40 students once per year Current Enrollment - 80 Accredited - Yes Last Accreditation Visit – March 2023 This was a joint visit - No NCLEX-RN Pass Rates 2022-23 = 97.37% 2023-24 = 100% Attrition Per Annual School Survey 2022-23 = 28.3% 2023-24 = 15% Consortium – No Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With – Yes, Matriculation agreement with Ohio University
Sacramento City College	G. Clerk	9/17/2025	agreement with Ohio University Total Cost of Program - \$4,658 Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations Program Request – Update curriculum forms with first series of CCCCO common course title and numbering changes. Rationale for Revision- Align with CCCCO for common course

7		T	
			numbering, and update requirements for licensing and degree-granting. Enrollment Pattern – 27 students two times per year, 20 students twice per year for LVN-RN Current Enrollment - 120 students Accredited - Yes, ACEN Last Accreditation Visit – Spring, 2024 This was a joint visit - Yes NCLEX-RN Pass Rates 2022-23 = 94.83% 2023-24 = 97.78% Attrition Per Annual School Survey 2022- 23 = 17.5% 20223-24 = 14.9% Consortium – Yes, Sacramento Academic Clinical Alliance for Nursing Education (SACANE) and North Far North Community College Consortium Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With – Yes, CSU Sacramento, Grand Canyon University and University of Phoenix Total Cost of Program, \$6,100 Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Weimar University	K. Daugherty	09/16/2025	Program Request - Updated curriculum forms for Spring 2026 to combine two existing Pharmacology courses and increase Gero course length from 2 weeks to 3 weeks. Rationale for Revision - Pharm course change provides a more even distribution of nursing units. Adding one week of instruction to Gero course more time to cover course topics and promote student success. Enrollment Pattern - 1x per year each Fall; 20 new students annually. Current Enrollment - 21 students Accredited – Yes, ACEN Last On-Site Accreditation Visit - January 2020 This was a Joint Visit - No NCLEX RN Pass Rates for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 100% Attrition Rates Per Annual Survey for Past 2 Years 2022-23 = 25%

	2023-24 = 0% Consortiums - Sacramento Academic Clinical Alliance for Nursing Education (SACANE) and the Sacramento Regional Psych/Mental Health regional planning group Matriculation Agreements or formal Concurrent Enrollment-No Total Cost of the Program - \$93,000 Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
--	--

PROGRESS REPORTS Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025

SCHOOL NAME	APPROVED BY NEC	DATE APPROVED	PROGRESS REPORT
Clinical Concerns Reported from Programs			
Faculty Concerns Reported			
from Programs			
Feasibility Abandonment	0.01.1	05/00/0005	
Pacific College of Health and Science	G. Clerk	05/29/2025	Pacific College of Health and Science withdraws application to establish a registered nursing program in California.
College of Nursing and	MA. McCarthy	09/15/2025	Requirements specified in 16 CCR 1421, document EDP-I-01, was not
Technology			completed, including the receipt of payment or submission of the feasibility study. After one year's time the application is deemed to have been abandoned.
Feasibility Extension			been abandoned.
Request			
Central Coast College	K. Daugherty	08/21/2025	Central Coast College in Salinas has requested an extension to resubmit the feasibility study. Revisions will be due before October 2026.
Homestead Schools Inc	D. Shipp	09/17/2025	Homestead Schools, Inc. came to the Board with a feasibility study in November 2023. At that time, the Board deferred action and requested Homestead Schools to consider a location outside of the Los Angeles and Orange County regions due to clinical placement concerns. Homestead Schools requested an additional one-year extension to allow additional time to explore options and planned to return to ELC in October 2026.

Institute of Technology, Redding Campus	M. Bauz	07/28/2025	The Institute of Technology, Redding Campus has requested a one- year extension for resubmission of their feasibility study. Revisions will be due before July 2026.
Initial Self-Study Extension Request			
Quest Nursing Education Center, Oakland CA	G. Clerk	09/24/2025	Quest Nursing Education has requested a one-year extension for resubmission of the initial self-study study. Revisions will be due before October 2026.
ELM (alpha A-Z)			
BSN (alpha A-Z)			
Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts Concord	K. Daugherty	08/20/2025	San Jose campus approved to start instruction September 2025. From 2026 forward, San Jose campus will admit 3x a year (January, May and September) for a total annual enrollment of 112 students. Gurnick Concord program maintains a total of 112 students annually. First annual secondary site summary expected October/November 2026 then annually thereafter.
Sonoma State University	K. Daugherty	06/12/2025	CCNE granted the BSN degree program reaccreditation until June 30, 2035.
Unitek College	MA. McCarthy	06/30/2025	Annual Progress Report of Secondary Sites. Bakersfield Kaweah Health Medical Center (BSN) program in Visalia, CA is an extension of the Bakersfield Campus. As of June 30, 2025, the Kaweah Health campus had 111 students enrolled. The inaugural cohorts started on March 27, 2023, as part of our Workforce Development initiatives. Bakersfield Sierra View Medical Center (BSN) program in Porterville, CA is an extension of the Bakersfield Campus. As of June 30, 2025, the Sierra View campus had 62 students enrolled. The inaugural cohorts started on March 27, 2023, as part of our Workforce Development initiatives. Bakersfield Community Health Medical Center (BSN) program in Fresno, CA is an extension of the Bakersfield Campus. As of June 30, 2025, the Community Health Systems campus had 117 students enrolled. The inaugural cohorts started on January 16, 2024, as part of our Workforce Development initiatives. All Sites Each campus has resources to run the program. Students who are at risk and not performing in their coursework are

			provided academic counseling with monitoring by pass-rates of coursework. Students who receive counseling are tracked to improve performance. The faculty at both the main Fremont campus, and secondary campuses at Bakersfield, Concord, and Sacramento campuses are considered as one and have the same individual and collective responsibility and accountability for instruction, evaluation of students, and ongoing planning, implementation, and evaluation of the curriculum and the program.
ADN (alpha A-Z)			
Cabrillo College	MJ Rosenblatt	08/22/2025	During the February 2025 CAV, Cabrillo College was found to be in non-compliance with three (3) BRN Prelicensure Regulations: CCR 1424 Administration and Organization of the Nursing Program, CCR 1425 Faculty Qualifications, and 1425.1 Faculty Responsibilities. In the interim, the program has worked on getting these areas resolved with progress below: CCR 1425. Faculty-Qualifications and Changes. Progress: The Director description has been finalized. The next step will be to confirm the institutional process with college Human Resources department and then proceed with the Assistant Director description update. CCR 1425.1. Faculty Responsibilities Progress: Curriculum planning added as a standing agenda item to all faculty meetings, and a dedicated curriculum development workshop conducted in May 2025. Two faculty members have been working over the summer to develop the first draft of the curriculum plan (including student learning outcomes and course outlines), which will be presented during a second all-faculty curriculum workshop on August 18th and 19th. Grant funding secured to provide release time for faculty to work on curriculum to launch Fall 2026 term. CCR 1425.1(b): Each faculty member shall participate in an orientation program Progress: New faculty handbook prepared and approved at the April 2025 faculty meeting. Mentors assigned for three newly hired faculty. A revised orientation checklist in development for clarity and updates.
Copper Mountain College	D. Shipp	09/08/2025	Copper Mountain College (CMC) had a routine CAV in December 2023 and was found to be in non-compliance with 2 BRN regulations and a total of 5 associated areas of non-compliance. In May 2024, the Board deferred approval of continuing approval due to 3 outstanding areas of

			non-compliance and requested program to provide quarterly progress reports. In May 2025, with on-going areas of non-compliance, the Board voted to again defer Continuing Approval and instructed program to submit quarterly progress reports and return to Board in one year if non-compliances not resolved. As of September 8, 2025, the program has made great progress in rectifying outstanding areas of non-compliances. As CMC continues to finalize faculty resources, including fall 2025 teaching assignments, the program anticipates having full faculty resources by late September, which should fully rectify outstanding compliance with CCR 1424(d) and (h).
Fresno City College	M. Bauz	09/12/2025	Progress report for non-compliances issued during December 2024 CAV. During the initial presentation to the BRN, the program was found in non-compliance of 6 BRN regulations and to date has fully resolved 1 non-compliance. CCR 1424(c) has been resolved with the development of the program organizational chart. CCR 1424(b)(1) Written plan for evaluation of the total program is currently pending. The Total Program Evaluation is undergoing revision to include all benchmarks with an update of methodology for data collection. CCR 1425 Faculty Qualifications and Changes; subsections 1425(c) and CCR 1425.1(d) clinical competencies are all pending. Regarding CCR 1425.1(b), the faculty and administration are currently revising their orientation manual and the process for faculty orientation. This process is still pending. Next progress report due December 1, 2025.
High Desert Medical College	K. Daugherty	08/21/2025	First program cohort (14) slated to graduate by January 2026. This cohort has used the HESI standardized predictive NCLEX testing and resources materials. Based on student and faculty assessments/evaluations and faculty former experience using ATI, the second generic program cohort starting in September 2025 will use the ATI complete package testing and resources instead of HESI products/solutions.
Long Beach City College	H. Hunter	08/13/2025	Program will be going back to their originally approved enrollment number of 148 students a year with an enrollment pattern of 64 generic students and 10 LVN students every semester (2x a year). The program's enrollment pattern last year was 40 generic and 8 LVN students every semester for a total of 96 students a year. The decrease in enrollment from the original approval of 148 a year was due to COVID. Program states they will be increasing their enrollment back to their original approval number incrementally. This will be done

			by enrolling 46 students in Spring 2026 then 52 students in Fall 2026 and then finally 64 students in Spring 2027 ongoing. LVN enrollment from 8 to 10 students will occur in Spring of 2026.
Los Angeles City College	M. Johnson	09/04/2025	Progress report from previous routine continuing approval visit November 2024 areas of non-compliance for CCR 1424 Administration and Organization of the Nursing Program, in two resource related subsections. Compliance to one resource related subsection has been met. Two student workers hired to assist in lab and simulation, along with a newly hired simulation technician. Virtual reality equipment received and functioning. Simulation debrief area updated with interactive screen displays real-time function with ability to playback. Designated tables and chairs for newly designed debrief area. Open skills lab with designated hours are now available to students, in conjunction with two new non-credited tutoring courses to assist students with remediation. Program is currently working to fulfill compliance related to adequate faculty. LACC has newly appointed permanent positions filled for both Program Director and Assistant Director, previously in the roles of interim positions. One full-time faculty filled with another full-time and adjunct faculty in the hiring process. LACC will continue with a decreased student enrollment of less than 30 students annually from their approved 50 students annually to facilitate meeting standards of having adequate faculty.
Los Angeles Southwest College	M. Johnson	07/07/2025	Nursing 502A, a beginning Medical/Surgical 8-week course, will temporary be offered only for this summer of 2025, from June 30 through August 22. Program unable to reintegrate the number of students required to retake class in the Fall 2025 semester. This temporary summer course will allow impacted students to remain on track with academic progression. A comprehensive evaluation conducted towards success for students in Nursing 502A, remediation plan in place. California Hospital Medical Center utilized as assigned clinical site assures no student displacement, as no other programs are present during the summer.
Ohlone College	K. Knight		Ohlone College has entered into contractual agreement with California State University, East Bay (CSUEB) to offer the Concurrent Enrollment Program (CEP). After graduation from Ohlone, students are eligible to take the NCLEX examination and continue with BSN courses. The anticipated start date is January 20, 2026, and an MOU is in place.
Santa Ana College	K. Knight	08/27/2025	Santa Ana College (SAC) Associate Degree Program and California

			State University, Fullerton (CSUF) Baccalaureate Degree Program are proposing a Concurrent Enrollment Program (CEP). The purpose of this collaboration is to provide a seamless and efficient pathway for nursing students to achieve Baccalaureate Degree preparation while completing their Associate Degree Nursing requirements. ADN students will be dually enrolled in selected BSN courses at CSUF. The official start date of the collaboration will be Fall 2026 and an MOU is in place.
Unitek College	MA. McCarthy	06/30/2025	Annual Progress Report of Secondary Sites. Fremont (ADN) in Fresno – implementation April 2024 after a delay due to the department of Education Eligibility and Certification Approval Report (ECAR) which is now complete. As of June30, 2025, the Fremont/Fresno campus had 25 students enrolled. This site has resources to run the program. Students who are at risk and not performing in their coursework are provided academic counseling with monitoring of pass-rates of coursework. Students who receive counseling are tracked to improve performance. The faculty at both the main Fremont campus, secondary campuses at Bakersfield, Concord, and Sacramento campuses are considered as one and have the same individual and collective responsibility and accountability for instruction, evaluation of students, and ongoing planning, implementation, and evaluation of the curriculum and the program.

APRN (alpha A-Z)			
California State University- Fresno PMHNP Post-Masters Certificate Program	H. Hunter	08/18/2025	The program is increasing their total clinical units from 10 units to 12 units to align with regulation 1484(H)(9). This additional unit change will be added to Management of Psychiatric & Mental Health Conditions Across the Life Span Practicum 1. The program will also add clinical hours to Practicum 2 and 3 to be consistent with Practicum 1's clinical hours of 180 hours per course. The program is changing course titles, descriptions, goals, and Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs) to better align with the American Nurses Credentialing Center (ANCC) Domains, Concepts, and Competencies. The practicum courses will also be renamed to Practicum I, II, and III to reflect their sequence and progression within the curriculum. Per the program, theses changes were made to ensure compliance with BRN and CCNE requirements, strengthen alignment with national certification standards and enhance clarity and sequency of course content.
Sonoma State University	K. Daugherty	06/12/2025	CCNE granted the MSN-FNP and Post Master's FNP Certificate programs re-accreditation until June 30, 2035. School will submit a written Continuous Improvement Program Report (CIPR) report to CCNE and BRN in five years. Next routine on-site joint BRN.CCNE visit expected in Fall 2034.
United States University	L. Kennelly	06/02/2025	USU has informed the board that effective May 29, 2025, the new address for its main campus is: 859 Mt. Vernon Hwy. NE, Suite 200 Sandy Springs, GA 30328 USU is currently completing a teach out of its CA NP program which has already been board approved.
University of California Davis	K. Daugherty	05/29/2025	NP program tracks (DNP-FNP and Post Graduate PMH NP certificate) granted CCNE initial accreditation (effective October 21, 2024) until June 30, 2030. Next routinely scheduled joint BRN.CCNE on-site visit expected in Fall 2029.
Vanguard University	K. Knight	08/25/2025	The Master of Science in Nursing (MSN) program will be adding a Psychiatric–Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP) track which builds upon the CCNE-accredited, BRN-approved Post-Master's PMHNP certificate program. Recruitment for the program is ongoing. The anticipated start date is Spring 2026.

CLINICAL AGENCY OR FACILITY APPROVALS **Education/Licensing Committee** October 21, 2025 SCHOOL NAME APPROVED DATE CLINICAL SETTING BY NEC **APPROVED** Name of Facility, Type of Facility → details if not obvious (Acute/Non-Acute), Average Daily Census (ADC), Content Areas (MS/O/C/PMH/G) ELM (alpha a-z) Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 07/30/2025 Cedars Sinai Medical Center, Acute, ADC-758, MS/G/C/O Children's Hospital LA, Acute, ADC-146, C Kaiser Permanente Woodland Hills, Acute, ADC-212, MS/G/O Kindred Hospital LA, Acute, ADC-71, MS/G Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 08/07/2025 Community Memorial Health Care, Acute, ADC-139, MS/G/O Los Robles Health System Regional Medical Center Thousand Oaks, Acute, ADC-224, MS/G/O Adventist Health Simi Valley, Acute, ADC-83, ED 130, MS/G Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 08/11/2025 Dignity Health Northridge Hospital, Acute, ADC-178, MS/G/C/O Providence-St. John's Santa Monica, Acute, ADC-215, ED 107, MS/G Santa Paula Hospital, Acute, ADC-82, MS/G St. John's Regional Medical Center Oxnard, Acute, ADC-139, MS/G/O Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 08/12/2025 Los Robles Health System Acute Rehab Hospital Westlake Village, Long Term Care, ADC-32, G Pepperdine University 09/03/2025 St. John's Hospital Camarillo, Acute, ADC-50, MS/G K. Daugherty Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 09/17/2025 Providence Little Company of Mary San Pedro, Acute, ADC-94, MS/G/PMH UCLA West Valley Medical Center, Acute, ADC-131, ED 150, MS/G Ventura County Medical Center, Acute, ADC-187, ED 145, MS/G/C/O/PMH BSN (alpha a-z) Arizona College M. Johnson 06/18/2025 Silverado Sierra Vista Memory Care, Non-Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC 25-42, MS/G Concordia University M. Johnson 06/16/2025 Loma Linda University Medical Center and Children's Hospital, Acute, ADC 19-42, MS/C/G 3/13/2025 Chino Valley Medical Center, Acute, ADC 25, MS/G Chamberlain, Irwindale S. dela Rosa 4/22/2025 Cedar Sinai Marina del Rey, Acute, ADC 260, MS/G Chamberlain, Irwindale S. dela Rosa

CLINICAL AGENCY OR FACILITY APPROVALS **Education/Licensing Committee** October 21, 2025 SCHOOL NAME **APPROVED** DATE **CLINICAL SETTING** BY NEC **APPROVED** Name of Facility, Type of Facility → details if not obvious (Acute/Non-Acute), Average Daily Census (ADC), Content Areas (MS/O/C/PMH/G) K. Daugherty 04/30/2025 Alameda Hospital, Acute, ADC-81, MS/G **Gurnick Academy of Medical** Arts-Concord; secondary Atherton Park Place, Non-Acute, ADC-140, MS/G campus San Jose Cedar Crest Nursing and Rehab, Non-Acute, ADC-45, MS/G Compcare Health Center, Clinic, ADC-60, O/C Crestwood Behavioral Health-San Jose, Non-Acute, ADC-100, PMH Crestwood Manor-Fremont, Non-Acute, ADC-120, PMH Crestwood Treatment Center-Fremont, Non-Acute, ADC-88, PMH Dr. Preet Bahnot, Inc-Morgan Hill, Non-Acute, ADC-30, O Dr. Preet Bahnot, Inc-San Jose, ADC-30, O Good Samaritan Hospital-San Jose, Acute, ADC-94, MS/G/C/O Idylwood Care Center, Non-Acute, ADC-130, PMH Indian Health Center-Capitol, Clinic, ADC-45, C/O Indian Health Center-Fremont, Clinic, ADC-45, C/O Indian Health Center-O'Connor, Clinic, ADC-45. C/O Indian Health Center-Meridan San Jose, Clinic, ADC-120, C/O John George Hospital, Acute, ADC-99, PMH Kentfield-San Francisco, Acute, ADC-50, MS/G Pacifica Nursing and Rehab Center, Non-Acute, ADC-80, MS/G Palo Alto Subacute and Rehab Center, Non-Acute, ADC-68, MS/G San Leandro Hospital, Acute, ADC-38; ED 100, MS/G Saratoga Pediatric Subacute, Non-Acute, ADC-30, C Zuckerberg San Francisco, Acute, ADC-3, C Gurnick Academy of Medical 05/01/2025 All Saints Sub Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-95, MS/G K. Daugherty Arts Concord, secondary Canyon Springs Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-45, MS/G campus San Jose Diablo Valley Skilled Nursing and Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-190, MS/G Hayward Gardens Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-75, MS/G Mc Clure Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-60, MS/G Medical Hill Health Care, Non-Acute, ADC-124, MS/G Pacific Coast Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-62, MS/G Peninsula Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-159, MS/G Salinas Valley Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-75, MS/G

CLINICAL AGENCY OR FACILITY APPROVALS **Education/Licensing Committee** October 21, 2025 SCHOOL NAME **APPROVED** DATE **CLINICAL SETTING** BY NEC **APPROVED** Name of Facility, Type of Facility → details if not obvious (Acute/Non-Acute), Average Daily Census (ADC), Content Areas (MS/O/C/PMH/G) Santa Cruz Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-93, MS/G St. Francis Health Care, Non-Acute, ADC-62, MS/G Sunnyvale Post Acute, Non-Acute, ADC-60. MS/G Valley Pointe Nursing and Rehab, Non-Acute, ADC-50, MS/G Vasona Creek Health Care, Non-Acute, ADC-45, MS/G White Blossom Care Center, Non-Acute, ADC-115, MS/G Cupertino Healthcare & Wellness Center, Non-Acute, ADC-60, MS/G Gurnick Academy of Medical K. Daugherty 07/07/2025 Arts Concord; secondary Highland Hospital, Acute, ADC-132, MS/G/C/O campus San Jose Real Options Medical-Central San Jose, East San Jose, Oakland, Union City, Clinics-ADC-2-4, O San Bruno Skilled Nursing, Non-Acute, ADC-45, MS/G Vista Post Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC-68, MS-G Medical Career College MA. McCarthy 08/24/2025 Princeton Manor, Long-Term Care, ADC-76, G Cedars Sinai Medical Center, Acute, ADC-758, MS/G/C/O Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 07/30/2025 Children's Hospital LA, Acute, ADC-146, C Kaiser Permanente Woodland Hills, Acute, ADC-212, MS/G/O Kindred Hospital LA, Acute, ADC-71, MS/G Community Memorial Health Care, Acute, ADC-139, MS/G/O Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 08/07/2025 Los Robles Health System, Regional Medical Center Thousand Oaks, Acute, ADC-224, MS/G/O Adventist Health Simi Valley, Acute, ADC-83, ED 130, MS/G Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 08/11/2025 Dignity Health Northridge Hospital, Acute, ADC-178, MS/G/C/O Providence-St. John's Santa Monica, Acute, ADC-215, ED 107, MS/G Santa Paula Hospital, Acute, ADC-82, MS/G St. John's Regional Medical Center Oxnard, Acute, ADC-139, MS/G/O Pepperdine University 09/03/2025 K. Daugherty St. John's Hospital Camarillo, Acute, ADC-50, MS/G Pepperdine University K. Daugherty 09/17/2025 Providence Little Company of Mary San Pedro, Acute, ADC-94, MS/G/PMH

MS/G/C/O/PMH

Saint Mary's College of

K. Knight

06/17/2025

UCLA West Valley Medical Center, Acute, ADC-131, ED 150, MS/G

Ventura County Medical Center, Acute, ADC-187, ED 145,

USC Verdugo Hills Hospital, Acute, ADC 76, MS/PMH/G

CLINICAL AGENCY OR FACILITY APPROVALS Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025

SCHOOL NAME APPROVED BY NEC APPROVED BY NEC APPROVED BY NEC APPROVED APPROVE APPROVED APPROV	October 21, 2025				
BY NEC APPROVED Name of Facility, Type of Facility → details if not obvious (Acute/Non-Acute), Average Daily Census (ADC), Content Areas (MS/O/C/PMH/G) California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/17/2025 Stanford Healthcare Tri-Valley, Acute, ADC 218, MS/O/G California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/17/2025 St Marry's Student Health Center, Clinic, ADC 26, MS/O California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/17/2025 VA Northern California Healthcare System Community Living Center, California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 Diabetic Youth Foundation, Non-Acute, ADC 175, C California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 John Muir Behavioral Health Center, Non-Acute, ADC 20, PMH California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 John Muir Walnut Creek Medical Center, Acute, ADC 62, MS/O California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 John Muir Concord Medical Center, Acute, ADC 26, MS California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 John Muir Concord Medical Center, Acute, ADC 26, MS California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 John Muir Concord Medical Center, Acute, ADC 27, C California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 CHONC-Saratoga Pediatric Subacute, Non-Acute, ADC 27, C California Saint Marry's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 CHONC-Saratoga Pediatric Subacute, Non-Acute, ADC 27, C California Saint Marry's College of K. Daugherty 06-19-2025 DaVita Redlands Dialysis, Ambulatory Care, ADC 36, MS-G Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty 07/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin K. Daugherty 07/26/2025 Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, ADC –26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC –30, O-C	SCHOOL NAME	A DDDOV/ED		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Acute), Average Daily Census (ÅDC), Content Areas (MS/O/C/PMH/G) California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight 06/17/2025 Saint Mary's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy 06-19-2025 DaVita Redlands Dialysis, Ambulatory Care, ADC 36, MS-G Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty 07/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin K. Daugherty 07/26/2025 Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G Ats-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz 06/03/2025 Medical Career College MA. McCarthy 07/28/2025	SCHOOL NAME				
California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/17/2025 St Mary's Student Health Center, Clinic, ADC 26, MS/O California Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/17/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/17/2025 Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of C		BY NEC	APPROVED	,	
Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight O6/18/2025 Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCar	O-1:f:-			Acute), Average Daily Census (ADC), Content Areas (M5/O/C/PMH/G)	
California Saint Mary's College of California California California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCarthy MA. McCarthy MA. M			00/47/0005	01 (111 111	
Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of K. Knight 06/18/2025 California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCarthy MA	, ,	K. Knight	06/17/2025	Stanford Healthcare Tri-Valley, Acute, ADC 218, MS/O/G	
California Saint Mary's College of California Saint		16.16.1.1	00/47/0005		
Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's Col		K. Knight	06/17/2025	St Mary's Student Health Center, Clinic, ADC 26, MS/O	
California Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy O6/18/2025 DaVita Redlands Dialysis, Ambulatory Care, ADC 36, MS-G Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty O7/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin K. Daugherty O7/26/2025 Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC - 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC - 30, O-C					
Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCarthy MA. McCarthy Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC 36, MS-G Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty O7/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz M. Bauz O6/03/2025 M. Bauz O7/28/2025 M. McCarthy O7/28/2025 M. McCarthy O7/28/2025 M. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C		K. Knight	06/17/2025		
California Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCarth					
Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy O6-19-2025 DaVita Redlands Dialysis, Ambulatory Care, ADC 36, MS-G Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty O7/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Non-Acute, Non-Acute, ADC 27, C Conmountity College Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C		K. Knight	06/17/2025	Diabetic Youth Foundation, Non-Acute, ADC 175, C	
California Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCar					
Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy M	1	K. Knight	06/18/2025	John Muir Behavioral Health Center, Non-Acute, ADC 20, PMH	
California Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCarthy DaVita Redlands Dialysis, Ambulatory Care, ADC 36, MS-G Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty O7/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin K. Daugherty O7/26/2025 Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 M.					
Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of California Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCarthy Butte College College of Marin Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz Maux Mau	Saint Mary's College of	K. Knight	06/18/2025	John Muir Walnut Creek Medical Center, Acute, ADC 62, MS/O	
California Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy MA. McCarthy Butte College College of Marin Gurinick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College MA. Bauz MA. Bauz MA. McCarthy MA. McC					
Saint Mary's College of California West Coast University MA. McCarthy	Saint Mary's College of	K. Knight	06/18/2025	John Muir Concord Medical Center, Acute, ADC 26, MS	
California West Coast University MA. McCarthy O6-19-2025 DaVita Redlands Dialysis, Ambulatory Care, ADC 36, MS-G Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty O7/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin K. Daugherty O7/26/2025 Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	California				
West Coast University MA. McCarthy 06-19-2025 DaVita Redlands Dialysis, Ambulatory Care, ADC 36, MS-G Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty 07/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin K. Daugherty 07/26/2025 Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz 06/03/2025 Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy 07/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	Saint Mary's College of	K. Knight	06/18/2025	CHONC-Saratoga Pediatric Subacute, Non-Acute, ADC 27, C	
Preceptorship. ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty 07/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin K. Daugherty 07/26/2025 Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Gurnick Academy of Medical K. Daugherty 06/10/2025 Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz 06/03/2025 Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy 07/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	California				
ADN (alpha a-z) Butte College K. Daugherty O7/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	West Coast University	MA. McCarthy	06-19-2025	DaVita Redlands Dialysis, Ambulatory Care, ADC 36, MS-G	
Butte College K. Daugherty O7/11/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G College of Marin K. Daugherty O7/26/2025 Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C				Preceptorship.	
College of Marin Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/26/2025 Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	ADN (alpha a-z)				
Gurnick Academy of Medical K. Daugherty O6/10/2025 Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	Butte College	K. Daugherty	07/11/2025	Special Needs Carnival, Non-Acute, ADC-30, G	
Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	College of Marin	K. Daugherty	07/26/2025	Petaluma Valley Hospital, Acute, ADC-84, MS	
Arts-Fresno Madera Community College M. Bauz O6/03/2025 Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68, MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	Gurnick Academy of Medical	K. Daugherty	06/10/2025	Cornerstone Care Center-Sanger, Long Term Care, ADC-90, MS/G	
MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy 07/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C					
MS/G/C St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C Valley Children's Hospital – Acute, Clinic, Ambulatory Care, ADC 92, C Medical Career College MA. McCarthy 07/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	Madera Community College	M. Bauz	06/03/2025	Community Regional Medical Center – Fresno, Acute, Clinic, ADC 68,	
Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C					
Medical Career College MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 MA. McCarthy O7/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C				St. Agnes Medical Center – Acute, ADC 19, C	
Medical Career College MA. McCarthy 07/28/2025 AHMC Seton Medical, Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 26, MS-G Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C					
Gardner Health Center, Clinic, ADC – 30, O-C	Medical Career College	MA. McCarthy	07/28/2025		
	J			The state of the s	
Hayward Healthcare and Wellness Center, Clinic, ADC – 25, MS-G				Hayward Healthcare and Wellness Center, Clinic, ADC – 25, MS-G	

CLINICAL AGENCY OR FACILITY APPROVALS **Education/Licensing Committee** October 21, 2025 SCHOOL NAME **APPROVED** DATE **CLINICAL SETTING** BY NEC **APPROVED** Name of Facility, Type of Facility → details if not obvious (Acute/Non-Acute), Average Daily Census (ADC), Content Areas (MS/O/C/PMH/G) Niles Canyon Post Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC – 65, MS-G Park Bridge Rehab and Wellness Center, Long-Term Care, ADC – 23 MS-G Driftwood Health Care Center, Long-Term Care, ADC – 55, MS-G Eden Healthcare Center, Long-Term Care, ADC-59, PMH-G Pacific College S. dela Rosa 5/16/2025 The Springs Post Acute, Long-Term Care, ADC 93, MS/G Ability First, Non-Acute- Care for Individuals with Development Pacific College S. dela Rosa 3/27/2025 Disability, ADC 84, C Foothill Regional Medical Center, Acute, ADC 38, MS/G Pacific College S. dela Rosa 2/24/2025 Pacific College S. dela Rosa 2/28/2025 Kindred Hospital Santa Ana, Long Term Acute, ADC 37, MS/G Saddleback College 06/23/2025 Hoag Wound Healing and Hyperbaric Center, Ambulatory Care, ADC M. Bauz 20, MS/G 06/25/2025 Children's Hospital of Orange County (CHOC) @ Mission, Acute, ADC 8, C 06/27/2025 Foothill Regional Medical Center, Acute, ADC 18, C 07/02/2025 Children's Hospital of Orange County (CHOC), Acute, ADC 173, C Hoag Hospital Newport Beach, Acute, Ambulatory Care, ADC 42, MS, G, O Hoag Hospital Irvine, Acute, ADC 46, MS, G Hoag Family Cancer Institute: Hoag Infusion Services and Apheresis. 07/08/2025 Ambulatory Care, ADC 90, MS, G 07/14/2025 Irvine Unified School District, Ambulatory, ADC 800, C



Agenda Item 4.2

Discussion and possible action regarding whether to recommend continuing approval of approved nursing programs

BRN Education/Licensing Committee | October 21, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Education/Licensing Committee Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 4.2 DATE: October 21, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action regarding whether to recommend

continuing approval of approved Prelicensure nursing programs and

Advanced practice nurse practitioner nursing programs

REQUESTED BY: Mary Ann McCarthy, Supervising Nursing Education Consultant

BACKGROUND: The <u>California Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 2785</u> requires the Board to prepare and maintain a list of Board-approved nursing schools in California whose graduates, if they have the other necessary qualifications, shall be eligible to apply for a license to practice nursing in this state. Additionally, BPC sections <u>2786.2</u> and <u>2788</u> and the <u>California Code of Regulations section 1483.1</u>, require the Board to inspect all Board-approved nursing schools and written reports of the visits to be made to the Board, which shall subsequently approve those nursing schools that meet the requirements provided by the Board.

The Nursing Education Consultants (NEC) conduct comprehensive program and interim approval visits and provide ongoing consultation to proposed and currently approved pre-licensure and advanced practice nursing education programs ensuring approved programs prepare safe competent registered nurses and advanced practice nurses.

The NECs have received and reviewed all documentation from program listed in Agenda Item 4.2. Information on these requests is on the lists provided in your materials packet. These programs have met all Board rules and regulations related to the requests and are consent agenda items.

NEXT STEP: Place on Board Agenda.

PERSON TO CONTACT: Mary Ann McCarthy, EdD, MSN, RN, PHN

Supervising Nursing Education Consultant

Prelicensure Continuing Approval Visit Consent Agenda Items					
Education/Licensing Committee					
October 21, 2025					
SCHOOL NAME	APPROVED	VISIT DATES	FULL COMPLIANCE REPORT		
	BY NEC				
ELM (alpha a-z)					
University of San Diego	M. Johnson	08/22/2025	Enrollment Pattern – 40 students in Fall, 20 students in Spring, total 60		
			students annually		
			Current Enrollment - 81 students		
			Accredited By – CCNE		
			Last Accreditation Visit – Fall 2019 Was this visit a joint visit with the BRN - No		
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates For Past 5 Years		
			2019-20 = 96.43%		
			2020-21 = 98.18%		
			2021-22 = 96.92%		
			2022-23 = 88%		
			2023-24 = 100%		
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey For Past 5 Years:		
			2019-20 = 0%		
			2020-21 = 2%		
			2021-22 = 12%		
			2022-23 = 3%		
			2023-24 = 5%		
			Consortium – Yes, San Diego Nursing & Allied Health Service Education		
			Consortium		
			Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No		
			Total Cost of Program – \$129,250		
BSN (alpha a-z)			Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations		
, ,					
California State University	H. Hunter	09/04/2025	Enrollment Pattern – 70 students 2 times per year.		
Fresno			Current Enrollment - 300		
			Accredited By – CCNE		
			Last Accreditation Visit – Fall 2017		
			Was this visit a joint visit with the BRN - No NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 5 Years		
			2019-20 = 93.08%		
		1	2019-20 - 30.0070		

			2020 24 - 02 040/
			2020-21 = 92.04% 2021-22 = 92.62%
			2022-23 =89.39%
			2023-24= 96.55%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 5 Years:
			2019-20 = 3.3%
			2020-21 = 1.7%
			2021-22 = 0%
			2022-23 = 1.7%
			2023-24 = 3.3%
			Consortium – Yes-Central San Joaquin Valley Clinical Education
			Collaborative Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No
			Total Cost of Program – \$20,562
_			Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations -Yes
Unitek College	MA. McCarthy	09/19/2025	Enrollment Pattern
			Fremont - 40 students 5 times a year. 200 students annually
			Current Enrollment - 338
			Bakersfield - 40 students 3 times a year. 120 students annually Current Enrollment - 207
			Sierra View Health - 15 students 2 times a year. 30 students annually
			Current Enrollment - 58
			Kaweah Health - 25 students 2 times a year. 50 students annually Current Enrollment - 97
			Concord - 40 students 3 times a year. 120 students annually
			Current Enrollment - 217
			Sacramento - 40 students 3 times a year. 120 students annually
			Current Enrollment - 272
			Accredited By – CCNE
			Last Accreditation Visit – This was a mid-evaluation with CCNE
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 5 Years
			2020-21 = new program no test takers yet
			2021-22 = 84.11%
			2022-23 = 81.16%
			2023-24 = 88.25%
			2024-25 = 86.30%

			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 5 Years: 2019-2020 = 14.5% 2020-2021 = 3.8% 2021-2022 = 2.8% 2022-2023 = 7.3% 2023-2024 = 9% Consortium – Yes, each campus participates in a regional consortium Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No Total Cost of Program – \$97,764.66 to \$148,540.67 (depending on program). Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations
ADN (alpha a-z)		00/15/2225	
Career Care Institute	S. dela Rosa	09/15/2025	Enrollment Pattern – 32 students 3 times per year for an annual enrollment of 96 students. Enrollment increase granted February 2025. Current Enrollment - 78 students Accredited By – Not accredited Last Accreditation Visit – N/A Was this visit a joint visit with the BRN - No NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 5 Years 2019-20 = 92.86% 2020-21 = 60.00% 2021-22 = 56.67% 2022-23 = 57.14% 2023-24 = 95.83% Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 5 Years: 2019-20 = 0% 2020-21 = 19.4% 2021-22 = 7.1% 2022-23 = 7.1% 2023-24 = 24.1% Consortium – No, there is no consortium in Region 8. Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With – No. Total Cost of Program – \$89,110.00 Program is in Compliance with BRN Regulations
Chaffey College	H. Hunter	09/11/2025	Enrollment Pattern –40 students 2 times per year. Current Enrollment - 157 Accredited By – ACEN Last Accreditation Visit – Fall 2025

		T	
			Was this visit a joint visit with the BRN - Yes
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 5 Years:
			2020-21 =92.54%
			2021-22 =80.49%
			2022-23 =89.71%
			2023-24=97.10%
			2024-25=93.24%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 5 Years:
			2019-2020=6.9%
			2020-2021=10.1%
			2021-2022=9.9%
			2022-2023=9.5%
			2023-2024=7.4%
			Consortium – Yes- Employment of Healthcare Workers
			Concurrent Enrollment With - Yes
			Cal State San Bernardino
			Loma Linda
			Grand Canyon University
			Azusa Pacific University
			Aspen University
			Matriculation With-Yes
			Cal State Fullerton
			Total Cost of Program – \$7000
Faction Avanda Callena	NAA NA-Otla	00/05/0005	Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations
East Los Angeles College	MA. McCarthy	09/05/2025	Enrollment Pattern – 30 students twice a year. Annual enrollment 60
			students
			Current Enrollment - 84
			Accredited By –not accredited
			Last Accreditation Visit – Fall 2024
			Was this visit a joint visit with the BRN - No
			NCLEX-RN Pass Rates for Past 5 Years
			2018-19 = 74.67%
			2019-20 = 72.22%
			2020-21 = 64.81%
			2021-22 = 76.60%
			2022-23 = 85.71%
			2023-24 = 100%
			Attrition Per Annual School Survey for Past 5 Years:

2018-19 = 0%
2019-20 = 0%
2020-21= 15.7%
2021-22= 14.7%
2022-23= 8.3%
Consortium – Yes CCPS
Matriculation and/or Concurrent Enrollment With - No
Total Cost of Program – \$5,720.
Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations

Nurse Practitioner Continuing Approval Visit Consent Agenda Items
Education/Licensing Committee
October 21, 2025

SCHOOL NAME	APPROVED BY NEC	VISIT DATES	FULL COMPLIANCE REPORT
APRN (alpha a-z)			
University of California San Francisco	K. Knight	11/13-14/2024	Date of this joint visit – November 2024 NP Programs Offered – AGACNP, AGPCNP, AGPCNP, FNP, NNP, PMHNP, PNPAC, PNPPC Current Enrollment Pattern – MSN 2 times per year (Summer/Fall) and BSN-DNP 1 time per year (Summer) Current Enrollment – AGACNP 31, AGPCNP 31, AGPCANP-OEH 0, FNP 45, NNP 3, PMHNP 45, PNP-AC 10, PNP-PC 9 Accredited By – CCNE Last Accreditation Visit – November 2024 Total Cost of Program – \$153,000 (\$76,000 if entering with BSN) Program is in compliance with BRN Regulations

Family/individual across the lifespan (FNP)
Adult-gerontology, primary care or acute care (AGPCNP and APACNP)

Neonatal (NNP)

Pediatrics, primary care or acute care (PNP-PC and PNP-AC)
Women's health/gender-related (WHNP)
Psychiatric-Mental Health across the lifespan (PMHNP)



Agenda Item 4.3

Discussion and possible action regarding whether to recommend approval of clinical practice experience required for nurse practitioner students enrolled in non-California based nurse practitioner education programs (16 CCR § 1486)

BRN Education/Licensing Committee | October 21, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Education/Licensing Committee Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 4.3 DATE: October 21, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action regarding whether to recommend

continuing approval of approved prelicensure nursing programs and

advanced practice nurse practitioner nursing programs

REQUESTED BY: Mary Ann McCarthy, Supervising Nursing Education Consultant

BACKGROUND: The <u>California Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 1486</u> identified the Non-California based Nurse Practitioner education program requesting clinical placement for students in clinical practice settings in California shall be approved by the Board and meet all regulatory requirements as listed.

The following Non-California based Nurse Practitioner education programs have provided evidence of compliance with CCR \sigma 1486 and ensure that students have successfully completed prerequisite courses and are enrolled in the Non-California based nurse practitioner education program.

The Supervising Nursing Education Consultants (SNEC) conduct comprehensive program review of programs seeking to offer clinical placements to students enrolled with a current CA RN license, ensuring student practicum in CA prepares safe competent advanced practice nurses.

The SNECs have received and reviewed all documentation from program listed in Agenda Item 4.3. Information on these requests is on the lists provided in your materials packet. These programs have met all Board rules and regulations related to the requests and are consent agenda items.

NEXT STEP: Place on Board Agenda.

PERSON TO CONTACT: Mary Ann McCarthy, EdD, MSN, RN, PHN

Supervising Nursing Education Consultant

CCR 1486 Requirements for Clinical Practice Experience Required for Nurse Practitioner (NP) Students Enrolled in Non-California Based Nurse Practitioner Education Programs (Consent Agenda Items) Education/Licensing Committee October 21, 2025				
SCHOOL NAME	Nursing Education Consultant	Review Date	NP Track(s) offered	# of Students approved for track
Required documentation reviewed ar	d determined to me	et all board re	equirements	
ASC Post University Waterbury, CT Kimberly Nerud knerud@post.edu 203-596-4627	MA. McCarthy	07/13/2025	 Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP) Adult Gero Acute Care Nurse Practitioner (AGPCNP) Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP) 	1. FNP - 275 2. AGACNP – 75 3. PMHNP - 250
University of Arizona Tucson, AZ Lindsay Bouchard 520-626-6327 labouchard@arizona.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/14/2025	Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP)	1. FNP - 5
Chaminade University of Honolulu Honolulu, Hawaii Pamela Smith (808) 735-4862 pamela.smith@chaminade.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/13/2025	Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP)	1. PMHNP - 6
Chamberlain University Chicago IL Rhonda Murray 872-310-4599 RMurray@chamberlain.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/18/2025	Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP)	1. PMHNP - 128

University of Pennsylvania Philadelphia PA Susan Renz 215-746-4447 srenz@nursing.upenn.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/19/2025	Women's Health Nurse Practitioner (WHNP)	1. WHNP - 5
Graceland University Independence MO Melanie Hijaz 816-423-4714 melanie1@graceland.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/19/2025	Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP) Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP)	1. FNP - 4 2. PMHNP - 4
University of Missouri-Columbia Columbia, MO Miriam Butler 573-884-5153 Butlermd@missouri.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/19/2025	Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP) Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP) Pediatric Primary Care Nurse Practitioner (PPCNP)	1. FNP - 6 2. PMHNP - 6 3. PPCNP - 5
Ursuline College Pike OH Elizabeth Carroll 440-684-6051 Elizabeth.carroll@ursuline.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/19/2025	Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP)	2. PMHNP - 2
Capella University Minneapolis MN Buddy Wiltcher 615-651-1080 Buddy.Wiltcher@Capella.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/19/2025	Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP) Adult Gero Primary Care Nurse Practitioner AGPCNP	1. FNP-30 2. AGPCNP-15
University of Saint Mary's Leavenworth, KS Michelle Krakar 706-615-7355 Michelle.Krakar@stmary.edu	MA. McCarthy	07/29/2025	Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP) Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP)	1. FNP - 1 2. PMHNP - 2

The Ohio State University Columbus, OH Kristine Browning 614-247-8116 browning.99@osu.edu	MA. McCarthy	08/03/2025	Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP) Adult Gero Primary Care Nurse Practitioner AGPCNP Pediatric Acute Care Nurse Practitioner (PACNP)	1. FNP - 6 2. AGPCNP - 4 3. PACNP- 4
Yale University West Haven, CT Katy Maggio 408-679-0283 Katy.maggio@yale.edu	MA. McCarthy	08/19/2025	Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP) Women's Health Nurse Practitioner (WHNP)	1. PMHNP - 15 2. WHNP - 5
Case Western Reserve University Cleveland, OH Latina Brooks 216-368-8532 lmb3@case.edu	MA. McCarthy	08/30/2025	 Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP) Adult Gero Acute Care Nurse Practitioner AGPCNP Adult Gero Primary Care Nurse Practitioner AGPCNP Psych/Mental Health Nurse Practitioner (PMHNP) Pediatric Acute Care Nurse Practitioner (PACNP) Pediatric Primary Care Nurse Practitioner (PPCNP) Neonatal Nurse Practitioner (NNP) Women's Health Nurse Practitioner (WHNP) 	1. FNP - 3 2. AGACNP - 3 3. AGPCNP - 3 4. PMHNP - 3 5. PACNP - 3 6. PPCNP - 3 7. Neonatal NP - 3 8. WHNP - 3



Agenda Item 5.1

Discussion and possible action regarding prelicensure nursing programs in non-compliance

BRN Education/Licensing Committee | October 21, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Education/Licensing Committee Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 5.1 DATE: October 21, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action regarding prelicensure nursing

programs in non-compliance

REQUESTED BY: Heather Hunter RN, MSN, Nursing Education Consultant

BACKGROUND: In August 2023, the Board deferred taking action on the continuing approval of Merritt College Associate Degree Nursing Program located in Oakland within Alameda County due to one (1) area of non-compliance and seven (7) related non-compliances from their February 2023 Continuing Approval Visit (CAV). The program came back in front of the Board in August 2024, April 2025, and June 2025 with continued non-compliances. During the June 2025 meeting, the program notified the Education and Licensing Committee that the program would be without a program director (PD) and assistant program director (APD) as of June 30, 2025. Per the Board motion the program is to return quarterly to the ELC until the program is in full compliance. Since the original CAV the program has come into compliance with four areas of non-compliance including 1424(g) and 1425.1(a). At the August 2025 Board meeting Merritt College was put on warning status.

The program has an annual enrollment approval for 40 students in the Fall, but due to the lack of faculty, resources, and multiple challenges, the program voluntarily held their enrollment in the Fall 2023, enrolled only 25 students in Fall 2024 and held enrollment again in Fall 2025. The current enrollment is 21 and the program anticipates enrolling 40 students in Fall 2026.

The following non-compliances are in progress.

- 1424(b)(1) The nursing program shall have a written plan for evaluation of the total program.
- 1424(h) The faculty shall be adequate in type and number.
- 1426(a) The curriculum of a nursing program shall be that set forth in this section and shall be approved by the board. Any revised curriculum shall be approved by the board prior to its implementation.

Currently the program is still in non-compliance with some of the regulations that were reported to the Board in April 2025. The program hired Dr. Diane Breckenridge PhD, MSN, ANEF, FAAN as interim Program Director (PD) on June 30, 2025. Dr. Breckenridge submitted a faculty hiring plan for the Assistant Program Director (APD) and faculty to the BRN on August 4, 2025. The program reports having two currently employed full-time instructors that have applied for BRN APD approval through the BRN's BreEze system. The PD reports she is mentoring both instructors in the APD/PD role. The program has not hired any faculty since the last Board meeting but the program reports after an indepth evaluation of the faculty assignments, the faculty was not being utilized at the highest credit units allowed per their contract. The program currently has sufficient faculty (three (3) full-time instructors and seven (7) part-time faculty) and resources for the 21 currently enrolled students but does not have sufficient faculty for the 40 students they intend to enroll in Fall 2026. The program reports having four (4) applicants for the two (2) full-time open Psychiatric and Pediatric instructor positions they plan to hire in Fall 2025. The program's submitted hiring plan and executive summary reports they will hire an additional two (2) full-time medical surgical instructors, one (1) in Spring 2026 and one (1) in Fall 2026.

The program submitted supportive evidence that the faculty are now involved in reviewing and updating the program's curriculum but, at this time, has not submitted final curriculum revisions for review and approval. Additionally, the program has not submitted a final version of their total program evaluation that meets the regulation but has made significant progress in addressing this non-compliance.

The NEC is working closely with the program director to ensure the current students in their program can complete the program without delays.

Cost of the program = \$8500

Attrition rate per annual survey
2019-2020 = 27.3%
2020-2021 = 39.4%
2021-2022 = 12.8%
2022-2023 = 20%
2023-2024 = 32.0%

NEXT STEP: Place on Board agenda.

PERSON TO CONTACT: Heather Hunter RN, MSN

Nursing Education Consultant

Education and Licensing Committee Deferred CAV Status Executive Summary - August 19, 2025 Diane Breckenridge, PhD, MSN, RN, ANEF, FAAN, Program Director Merritt College Response to Continuing Approval Visit Report of Findings 2023

Merritt College has a history of delivering associate degree nursing instruction since 1978. The CA BRN approved a 40-student cohort annually completing the two-year program following the college calendar. Our graduates have supported the bay area and provided nurses that have stayed in the community to provide excellent compassionate and safe care. During the 2023 continuing approval visit non-compliances were identified. The Barbara Lee Health Sciences Building over the past 10 years houses the ADN Merritt College Program of the Peralta CA Community College District which to overcome these non-compliances obtained a \$1.15 million Rebuilding Nursing Infrastructure grant from The CA Community Colleges Chancellor's Office to collaboratively work to overcome these non-compliances as 650 students declare nursing as their major at the community college and are awaiting the return of the 40-student cohort group. The demand to recruit an approved Ca BRN Program Director at the June 17, 2025, CA BRN meeting by July 1, 2025, with expertise known to turn around non-compliances by a team approach occurred by hiring Diane Breckenridge, PhD, MSN, RN, ANEF, FAAN as the new program director (PD). She brought her Strategies for Success approaches with a deep dive assessment to determine evidence-based work that has been accomplished, institute evidence-based work and institute student, faculty, and program strategies to bring about program, student, and faculty success outcomes.

The responses below addresses evidence to overcome the non-compliances.

1424 The program shall have sufficient resources, including faculty, library, staff and support services, physical space and equipment, including technology to achieve the program's objectives.

PD after careful assessment and meeting with faculty, staff, students, administration, support services, librarian, IT personnel and reviewing all physical space and equipment has found the resources are and were sufficient for 25 students in 2023, 2024, and now Fall 2025 for the continuing 2nd year 21 students. PD found the materials that were not in the 2022, postponed to 2023 continuous approval report whereby the previous program director submitted a 21-page report that did not include the evidence, specifically the areas of the Total Program Evaluation (TPE). By working with the Student Assessment Committee, the PD is reporting the data of the Student Assessment Program Learning Outcomes (PLOs) since prior to 2023 to present. The data indicates that there was 1 faculty member to 3.5 students; a 1:3.5 faculty/student ratio since 2023 with 25 students and presently 1 to 3.5 faculty to student ratio for 21 students. With a reinstatement of the 40-student cohort with Full Time (FT) faculty and not counting the 3 PT faculty we plan to continue to hire it will be a 1:7 faculty to student ratio. And when 2 additional faculty are hired in 2026 for a total of 7 FT faculty that will be a 1:6 faculty to student ratio not counting the 7 Part-time (PT) faculty available for this program. The program has moved forward to identify and obtain resources sufficient for the reinstatement of the originally approved 40-student cohort with the \$1.15-million grant focusing on securing resources to overcome non-compliances. Due to the faculty and former PD input: Salaries have been increased to step 20 for contract faculty bringing a significant increase based on the longterm input of the nursing faculty at Merritt; as long as 19 to 20 years. The new FT Med-Surg Faculty hired in 2024-25 academic year and the FT new Nursing Program Director hired on July 1, 2025 received these increases as well as the faculty previously hired. The new PT Faculty member for Psych was hired in July 2025 at the highest credit units allowed to be able to devote time and effort as a content expert. The 2 previously hired PT Peds faculty have been increased to the highest credit units allowed to be able to continue to devote time and effort in curricula revisions

The ADN Nursing Program hiring plan is underway to hire 2 FY Faculty in Fall Semester 2025 (Psych and Peds), that will fulfill the 2 FT content expert non-compliances with a minimum of an MSN and CA BRN Approval in each of these specialties. In the plan are two additional FT faculty, one Med-Surg faculty to be hired Spring 2026 and another Fall 2026. These 2 positions have been approved by President Johnson and Vice President, Lisa Cook. For the Pediatric Course consisting of 9 students, this Fall 2025 semester, we have the same part-time MSN and DNP faculty member, CA BRN approved in Peds. She has been the Content Expert and will continue to be until we hire a full-time Peds faculty member this Fall 2025. Also, with the students on clinical, is a long-time assistant instructor with a BSN and CA BRN Approved in Pediatrics. For the Psychiatric course consisting of 12 students, this Fall 2025 semester, we have worked with hiring a new faculty member who has an MSN and PhD and is CA BRN approved in Psych to teach clinical this fall. She qualifies with up-to-date Psych continuing education as a content expert in Psych/Mental Health. Fall 2025 Semester Course Teaching Loads of the 3 existing FT faculty for the 21-student cohort with 3 PT faculty are scheduled at less than a half FT teaching load of a Merritt College FT teaching load which is 15 Credit Units. Therefore, each FT faculty has only 6 to 7 Credit Units this Fall 2025 semester. This allows for all three of the present FT faculty, if interested, to be an Assistant Director (AD). The goal is for 1 minimum AD, ideally 2, to be ADs as they are being oriented to the role by PD Breckenridge. Hiring FT faculty for Peds and Psych during this Fall 2025 Semester will give the 2 new faculty members time to work together with the other 3 FT faculty. After this Fall 2025 semester, Peds is not in the total curriculum plan, EDP-P-05, until Spring 2027 and Psych Nursing is not until Fall 2027; which has been reviewed in faculty curriculum meetings beginning on Aug 1, 2025 via zoom until the faculty returned onsite Aug 14th. Hiring Psych and Peds FT faculty has become very realistic since this past week we received 4 candidates from the postings with Psych experience and 1 candidate also with Peds experience. We reposted the Peds faculty position and as soon as we have more Peds candidates we are adding those qualified into the committee interview process which is already commencing.

1424(d) Related Non-Compliances:

1424 (f) The program shall have a board-approved assistant director who is knowledgeable and current regarding the program and the policies and procedures by which it is administered and who is delegated the authority to perform the director's duties in the director's absence.

Iona Henderson, MSN, RN, submitted her EDP— P-03 on 8/27/2025 and submitted into the BreEze system. Ms. Henderson has been teaching at Merritt ADN Program since 2006 and has informed PD she plans to stay. Her understanding of the progression of policies and curriculum of the program is evident in manuals she has compiled showing Nursing Course Evaluations for the 2023 program self-study. Monica Mofidi, DNP, MSN,

RN, submitted her EDP-P-03 on Aug 29, 2025 who has taught one year FT at Merritt College and from 2001 to 2006 in their LVN program changed to an RN program from 2006 to becoming FT in the 2024-2025 year. Dr. Mofidi is a graduate of the ADN Merritt Program in 2017 and is very enthusiastic and steadfast in assessing the skills/sim labs and integrating theory with skills/sim and clinical into the curriculum based on concept-based competencies.

1424 (g) Faculty members shall have the primary responsibility for developing policies and procedures, planning, organizing, implementing, and evaluating all aspects of the program.

Faculty Development meetings occurred reviewing the EDP-P-05 total curricular plan with the revision of the Critical Thinking Course that NEC, Heather Hunter, assisted past APD in developing and informed new PD that it was a weak course. PD Breckenridge reviewed the syllabus immediately and determined the best fit faculty for this course being Monica Mofidi who made updated revisions with the guidance of PD and curricula syllabi review from the ATI team. Even though these 21 students did not have their first year, 2024-2025 with ATI resources, all resources have been activated for them including the Critical Thinking Assessment being added to the beginning of this course with the end of program Critical Thinking Assessment at the end of the course. Ongoing evaluation will occur to determine if more revisions are necessary. Faculty have been actively collaborating with the new PD re: revision of the Total Curricular Plan to be ready for the re-instatement of the 40-student cohort. Both Critical Thinking and Nutrition Courses which are in the present EDP-P-05 this Fall 2025 Semester have been updated and will be moved to the first year. The FT faculty showed how they had taking a lead responsibility for key areas of the 2023 continuous self-study systematic plan of evaluation: 1. program evaluations - Iona Henderson; 2. simulation materials and infrastructure - Monica Mofidi since hired this past year, has been working on the organization of the skills/simulation labs, 3. clinical course teaching philosophy: Think-Like-a-Nurse in the classroom, progress to the skills/sim lab for competency-based education with clinical evaluation tools for each direct care clinical area and concept-based education with nursing theory concepts - Diana Barrios. Faculty have had time to participate in their every 3 weeks' committee structure with the curriculum committee and the total faculty committee meetings on a regular basis which has been increased to every 2 weeks until end of October to increase integration with ATI. The three FT faculty are lead faculty and are able to communicate with 2 PT clinical faculty who came to campus to meet new PD, full-time faculty and students. The faculty has spent time and effort with curriculum development because of not taking in a new cohort for the Fall 2025 year. The instructional time for the 21-students returning cohort of Fall 2025 has been enhanced by a preliminary review of the curriculum by Consultant Nurse Tim that predominately focused on NCLEX-RN Exam passage which has not been a primary need but more needed is interactive consultation that is provided by ATI complete package to assist in retention strategies which has been a major need due to a 39% attrition leaving only 21 students in the program.

1424 (h) The faculty shall be adequate in type and number to develop and implement the program approved by the board and shall include at least one qualified instructor in each of the areas of nursing required by section 1426(d) who will be the content expert in that area. Nursing faculty members whose teaching responsibilities include subject matter

directly related to the practice of nursing shall be clinically competent in the areas to which they are assigned.

There are adequate in type and number of faculty to develop and implement the program approved by the board. Every nursing course in the program has a content expert. Monica Mofidi, DNP, MSN, RN is Medical-Surgical and Gerontology approved and Gerontology Content Expert. She joined long-term, very dedicated Medical-Surgical and Gerontology Instructor, Iona Henderson, MSN, RN approved and Medical-Surgical content expert. Jackie Wilson, PhD, MSN, RN, CA BRN approved in Psychiatric/Mental Health hired in July 2025. We are continuing to hire a full-time Pediatric Instructor and have it posted. We have 2 long-term and excellent credentialed Pediatric faculty who expect to continue as part-time as we are pending approval of re-instating a 40-student cohort for Fall 2026. Elena Todorova, DNP, MSN, RN is CA BRN approved in Peds and content expert for the past few years PT. Diana Barrios, MSN, RN, 20 years FT with the program as the CA BRN approved OB faculty content expert.

1424(b)(1) The nursing program shall have a written plan for evaluation of the total program, including admission and selection procedures, attrition and retention of students, and performance of graduates in meeting community needs.

Upon assessment and discussions, PD found the ADN Program Specialist has carried out collecting the data for the prior PD and faculty for Admissions and Selection. The ADN Program Specialist was able to clearly explain to the new PD how the process was and if the 40-student cohort is reinstated, carried out: 1.the Chancellor's Lottery, the TEAS ATI pretest; determine those that need remediation are referred to the PD for an action plan in which new PD reviewed and met with and corresponded with students who completed and are ready to enter the program; 2. Attrition and Retention tabulated every semester, with clear understanding of who did not academically pass vs who left the program for family or other needs; and 3, the PD was able to find 2 years of data related to performance in meeting community needs in agenda's and minutes of the Advisory Committee that is to meet every semester which includes stakeholders not only at Merritt College but also from the entire Peralta Community College System as well as clinical affiliation colleagues, and career counsellors. For this Oct 2nd Advisory Committee, added are: Student Assessment Chair, administration with faculty and the student leadership council. The plan in place for the total plan of evaluation (TPE) of the program addresses BRN requirements. This plan and implementation of a TPE including the reinstatement of the complete program of ATI to help address high attrition rates and improve retention. The TPE includes the reinstatement of the admission and selection procedures which began this summer with attention on a preliminary consultation by Nurse Tim and moved to a more interactive complete systematic plan of evaluation by ATI with onsite and online faculty development and student orientation and activation of resources occurring to increase retention, decrease attrition, and enhance the performance of graduates to meet community needs.

1425.1Faculty Responsibilities

1425.1(a) Each faculty member shall assume responsibility and accountability for instruction, evaluation of students, and planning and implementing curriculum content. There are adequate faculty/staff taking responsibility for developing policies and procedures, planning, organizing, implementing, and evaluating all aspects of the program for the present 21 students for this academic year and in the planning and

revising the EDP-P-05 with consultation for the reinstatement of the original 40-student cohort. The faculty has reviewed the EDP-P-05 and have included much more critical thinking activities into the new 2 credit course, the Nutrition 2 credit course as well as all their clinical courses. Much attention was given to the total curriculum plan and TPE which is ongoing. Faculty development day occurred on April 14th when all syllabi that needed to be updated were as a group collaboratively reviewed for the start of the Fall 2025 Semester. PD Breckenridge reviewed and made notations for improvements with faculty input prior to this date through the summer. The finalization occurred by the end of day, April 15th as an individual and collaborative faculty development day. The reinstated complete package ATI is paid for by the nursing program. Upon review of ATI data, there was a 100% NCLEX Merritt Graduates' pass rate in 2017 with lower attrition. Full-time faculty are still current in the ATI faculty roster in their proctoring certification until November 2025; showing they have been active users. ATI began curriculum review and came onsite with all 21 students for their first day of class, Aug 18th with FT faculty and the PD for a re-orientation based on curriculum review of updated syllabi for the Fall Semester; classroom theory with faculty and students in the AM and integrative skills in the skills/sim lab. The day was very positive with the focus on the 21 students and updates regarding the curricula changes including classroom; then skill/sim lab with their FT faculty. Then to clinical for direct onsite hours for 1 full-day per week. Review of the student-faculty meetings including curriculum and advisory committee meetings were reviewed during the nursing sponsored welcome back lunch update session. PD Breckenridge's Strategies for Success approaches were included: hearing the student concerns during the summer and including a positive and realistic approaches to increase student retention and decrease the attrition in which PD Breckenridge has been successful in doing so at other nursing programs that have been on non-compliance and/or warning to close bringing attrition to 0-3% within one semester and evidence showing sustainment if continued attention on student challenges. Review of the integration of ATI systematic assessments in clinical courses with the goal to increase retention from the high 39% attrition to the norm with integrating ATI Complete which nationally has been 11% attrition; with 89 percent retention. Students and faculty were engaged and off to a positive start. Feedback is being obtained at our student-faculty meetings beginning in Sept which will be every 2-3 weeks to evaluate how the semester is progressing with the curriculum and resource changes.

1426. Required Curriculum

1426 (a) The curriculum of a nursing program shall be set forth in this section and shall be approved by the board. Any revised curriculum shall be approved by the board prior to its implementation.

There are adequate faculty/staff to revise and update the curriculum and reevaluate the program to make needed changes. ATI activities have been added both for testing proctored by the faculty leads in the computer/learning lab and with FT approved faculty in the skills/sim labs prior to students moving clinically to direct care. PD Breckenridge obtained the previous minutes from Merritt College Curriculum Chair and including times this summer. Additional meetings are being set to add the new sequence of the EDP-P-05 continuing with faculty, PD and ATI curriculum consultants beginning in Sept bringing Nutrition and Critical Thinking into the first year of the program and decrease the clinical hours to 500 direct care hours with the 30 mandatory direct care hours of the 3 specialties:

Peds, Perinatal name change to OB or Maternity, and Psych changed to Psych/Mental Health. PD and AD will keep in close consultation with NEC, Heather Hunter, revised curriculum for the re-instatement of the 40-student cohort.

1426(c)The curriculum shall consist of not less than fifty-eight (58) semester units, or eighty-seven (87) quarter units which shall include at least the following number of units in the specified course areas:

The curriculum has been reviewed by faculty which is adequate in number of faculty to meet requirements of the present 21-student cohort. With attention on hiring this fall, especially with 4 potential candidates, the increase in number of faculty hired will have time to also be involved in all requirements to be met for the Fall 2026 of a 40-student cohort. The two specialties of Peds and Psych nursing courses will not be taught until Spring and Fall 2027 giving adequate time for the 2 new FT Peds and Psych faculty to review the curriculum and revise based on their content expertise. The faculty worked together to update the additional course, Critical Thinking, which meets the 2-unit deficit within the curriculum. The course has been approved by our NEC, the curriculum committee at the college and district level and is in the EDP-P-05 total curricular plan for the cohort of 21 students who entered in Fall 2024. Since it was a weak course as per our NEC, Heather Hunter, PD Breckenridge worked with faculty members to increase Critical Thinking in the Curriculum including ATI critical thinking activities. ATI complete has been reinstituted for consultation of curriculum with faculty both in the theory and skills/sim lab for faculty development in 4 sessions. The entire faculty, participates in updates and further developing content. The updated infrastructure in the skills/sim labs are well equipped with recently determined manikins and updated internet support.



Agenda Item 5.2

Discussion and possible action regarding a request for an enrollment increase for an approved prelicensure nursing program

BRN Education/Licensing Committee | October 21, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Education/Licensing Committee Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 5.2.1 DATE: October 21, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action regarding a request for an enrollment

increase for an approved prelicensure nursing program California Baptist University Baccalaureate Degree and Entry-Level Master's Degree

Muraina Draggara

Nursing Programs

REQUESTED BY: Heather Hunter RN, MSN, Nursing Education Consultant

BACKGROUND: California Baptist University Baccalaureate Degree (BSN) and Entry-Level

Master's (ELM) Degree Nursing Programs in Riverside, California, located in Region 7, are

requesting an enrollment increase. The programs are accredited by CCNE and the last joint visit with the BRN was in February 2023. The program was found to be full BRN compliance.

Current Enrollment Pattern:

ELM = 40 students once a year (Summer) for an annual enrollment of 40.

BSN = 98 students twice a year of an annual enrollment of 196.

Requested Enrollment Pattern:

ELM = 48 students once (1) a year (Summer) for an annual enrollment of 48. (An increase of 8 students a year)

BSN = 110 students twice (2) a year for an annual enrollment of 220. (An increase of 24 students per year)

This request is to increase a total of 32 prelicensure students annually

Cost of the program = BSN \$184,000 and ELM \$95,000

NCLEX Pass Rates

BSN	ELM
2020-2021 = 87.74%	2020-2021 = 85.71%
2021-2022 = 85.09%	2021-2022 = 83.78%
2022-2023 =85.47%	2022-2023 =81.08%
2023-2024 = 91.53%	2023-2024 = 95.12%
2024-2025 = 83 00%	2024-2025 =95%

Attrition rate

ELM
2018-2019 = 0%
2019-2021 = 0%
2021-2022 = 7.1%
2022-2023 = 10%
2023-2024 = 2.5%

The program reported their need to increase enrollment was due to the large number of applicants they must deny yearly. "Since 2020, in the BSN program, we have had to deny 33.6% to 46.4% qualified applicants. In the ELMSN program, since 2020, we have denied 35% to 66% qualified applicants."

The funding for both for the BSN and ELM enrollment increase will be sustained by student tuition and their Song-Brown grant.

The program has adequate space and resources for the additional students per the program's submitted supportive evidence. The proposed enrollment increase does not require any changes to the program's didactic courses and will only require two additional clinical rotations to accommodate the additional students. The program reports they do not need any additional clinical sites for this enrollment increase. The program stated they are not using all clinical spots given to them each semester by their clinical partners for their currently approved enrollment numbers so they will use these clinical spots for the additional 25 students.

The program currently has 31 full-time faculty and 72 adjunct faculty. The program has sufficient faculty to support the increase per the submitted Nursing Curriculum and Clinical Facilities (EDP-P-11) form and will not need to hire additional faculty.

The program notified the Inland Empire Consortium and clinical partners about their enrollment increase. The program reported they had no negative responses from either the consortium or their clinical partners. Additionally, the program did not need to add additional clinical sites for this increase due to the open clinical spots they were not utilizing at their currently approved clinical sites.

NEXT STEP: Place on Board agenda.

PERSON TO CONTACT: Heather Hunter RN, MSN

Nursing Education Consultant

5.2.1 California Baptist University - Enrollment Increase

California Baptist University (CBU) is a Baccalaureate (BSN) and Entry-Level Master's (ELM) Degree program located in Riverside, California in Region 7. California Baptist University is requesting an enrollment increase to the large number of qualified applicants they must deny yearly. The total annual enrollment requested is below:

- BSN 110 students twice a year for an annual enrollment of 220 students. (An increase of 8 students per year)
- ELM 8 students every summer for an annual enrollment of 48 students. (An increase of 24 students per year)

Other programs presented:

There are no (0) other programs requesting enrollment increase(s), new campus(es), or new program(s) within Region 7.

Currently approved:

CBU is approved for the following:

- BSN 98 students twice a year for an annual enrollment of 196 students.
- ELM 40 students every summer for an annual enrollment of 40 students.

CBU has been approved for one (1) enrollment increase (112 students annually) in last six (6) years. This request was originally deferred in November 2018 and later approved in February 2019.

N	nformation			Board Meeting Information					
School	Program Type	City	County	Region	Meeting Date	Request Type	Enrollment Increase Request	Action	Adjustment
							Defer enrollment pattern change return to Board after		
California Baptist University	BSN - Private	Riverside	Riverside	7	November-18	Enrollment Increase	regional summit meetings. Enrollment request from	Deferred Act	None
							160 to 196 annually, increase 32.		
California Baptist University	BSN - Private	Riverside	Riverside	7	February-19	Enrollment Increase	from 160 to 196 anually, increase 32	Approved	None

Region 7 Data 2019-2025

Enrollment decisions for Region 7 have resulted in a growth of 2,170 new students through the approval of twelve (13) enrollment increases (928 students annually), five (5) new campuses (732 students annually) and five (5) new programs (420 students annually) and one (1) feasibility study (90 students annually). One (1) request for enrollment increase in Region 7 wase deferred: California Baptist University (32 enrollments) which was later approved in February 2019.

California Baptist University BSN - Private Riverside Ri	Nursing Program Information					Board Meeting Information				
California Baptiet University SN - Private Riverside Riverside Riverside 7 November 10 Nov	School =	rogram 🔻	City 🕌	Count -	Re 🏋		Request Ty 🐷	Enrollment Increase Request	Acti 🔻	djusti 🔻
Caltorian Baptet University BSN - Private Distance Reverside None Arizona College BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-20 Facibility 120 annually increase 18 Approved None Arizona College BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-21 New Program 120 annually Approved None Arizona College BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-21 New Program 120 annually Approved None American Careor College ADN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-21 New Campus 125 annually Approved None Stanbridge University BSN - Private Distance Reverside 7 Movember-21 New Campus 125 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 160 annually Approved None None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 160 annually Approved None Palo Verde College ADN Blythe Riverside 7 November-22 New Campus 20 annually Approved None Palo Verde College ADN Blythe Riverside 7 November-22 New Campus 20 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 36 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 36 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 36 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 36 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 36 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 36 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 36 annually November-24 Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-25 New Campus 36 annually November-26 None None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-26 Nove Campus 36 annually November-26 None None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-27 November-28 Nove Campus 36 annually November-28 Nove Campus 36 annually November-28 Nove Campus 36 annually November-28 November-29 Nove Campus 36 annually November-29 Nove Campus 37 November-29 Nove Campus 37 November-29 Nove Campus 38 Approved None Nov	California Baptist University	BSN - Private	Riverside	Riverside	7	November-18	I	after regional summit meetings. Enrollment	Deferred A	None
Arizona College BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-20 Feasibility 120 annually Approved None CSU San Bernardino BSN Palm Bezert Riverside 7 April-20 Enrollment Increase from 114 to 132, increase 18 Approved None Arizona College BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-21 New Program 120 annually Approved None Approved None Arizona College ADN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-21 New Campus 125 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-21 New Campus 125 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-21 New Campus 160 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 160 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 160 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 160 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Ontario San Josephin Valley College ADN - Private Plancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Ontario San Josephin Valley College ADN - Private Plancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Ontario San Josephin Valley College ADN - Private Plancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-22 Rev Campus 216 annually Approved None Ontario San Josephin Valley College ADN - Private Plancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 160 to 200, increase 60 Approved None Riverside 17 August-22 Enrollment Increase 7 from 160 to 200, increase 60 Approved None Ontario Riverside Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase 7 from 160 to 200, increase 60 Approved None Ontario Riverside Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase 7 from 160 to 200, increase 60 Approved None Ontario Riverside Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase 7 from 160 to 200, increase 60 Approved None Ontario Riverside	California Baptist University	BSN - Private	Riverside	Riverside	7	February-19			Approved	None
Artisona College BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino T November-21 New Program 120 annually Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Pilverside Pilverside Pilverside T May-21 New Campus 125 annually Approved None Ontario San Bernardino T November-22 New Campus 160 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Data of San Bernardino T November-22 New Campus 160 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino T November-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino T November-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino T November-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino T November-22 New Campus 36 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino T November-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 42 Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario San India San Bernardino T November-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 60 Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario Silverside T February-23 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 61 Approved None Oncordia University San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Pilverside Silverside T May-23 Enrollment Increase From 169 to 260 annually, increase 61 Approved None Oncordia University San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Pilverside Silverside T May-23 Enrollment Increase From 169 to 260 annually, increase 64 Approved None Oncordia University San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Ontario Silverside T May-23 Enrollment Increase From 169 to 260 annually, increase 60 Approved None Oncordia University San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Ontario Silverside T May-23 Enrollment Increase From 169 to 260 annually, increase 60 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Ontario Silverside T August-23 Fearibility San annually San Approved None Oncordia University San Bernardin	Arizona College	BSN - Private	Ontario	San Bernardino	7	November-20		120 annually	Approved	None
American Carcer College ADN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-21 New Campus 125 annually Approved None Stanbridge University BSN - Private Riverside Riverside 7 May-21 New Campus 160 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Program 20 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-22 New Program 20 annually Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 210, increase 42 Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 260 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 260 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia Oncordia CAN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia CAN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia CAN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia CAN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 180 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia CAN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 180 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia CAN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 180 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia CAN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 180 annually, increase 6 Approved None Oncordia CAN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 18	CSU San Bernardino	BSN	Palm Desert	Riverside	7	April-20	Enrollment Increase	from 114 to 132, increase 18	Approved	None
Stanbridge University BSN - Private Riverside Rivers	Arizona College	BSN - Private	Ontario	San Bernardino	7	November-21	New Program	120 annually	Approved	None
Palo Varde College ADN Blythe Riverside 7 February-21 Feasibility 20 annually Approved None Concordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Palo Varde College ADN Blythe Riverside 7 November-22 New Program 20 annually Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-22 Rerollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 42 Approved None College of the Desert ADN Palm Desert Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 42 Approved None Riverside City College ADN - Private Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 160 to 200, increase 60 Approved None Marsha Fuerst SDN - Gleadede ADN - Private Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 160 to 260 annually, increase 61 Approved None Marsha Fuerst SDN - Gleadede ADN - Private Plancho Mirage Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 160 to 260 annually, increase 64 Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None Westelliff University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually, increase 40 Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 36 to 360 annually, increase 44 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually, increase 44 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 44 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollme	American Career College	ADN - Private	Ontario	San Bernardino	7	November-21	New Campus	125 annually	Approved	None
Concordia University BSN - Private Ontario San Bernardino 7 November-22 New Campus 216 annually Approved None Palo Verde College ADN Blythe Riverside 7 November-22 New Program 20 annually Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 42 Approved None College of the Desert ADN Palm Desert Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 80 Approved None Riverside 18 Verside 18 Verside 19 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 80 Approved None College of the Desert ADN Palm Desert Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 80 Approved None Riverside City College ADN Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 260 annually, increase 60 Approved None Marcha Puerst SON - Glandale ADN - Private Riverside 7 Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 260 annually, increase 66 Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 66 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Contain Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 56 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155 for 2024 oally, increase 30 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None Westelliff University BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually increase 16 Approved None Westelliff University BSN - Private Contain Silverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15	Stanbridge University	BSN - Private	Riverside	Riverside	7	May-21	New Campus	160 annually	Approved	None
Palo Verde College ADN Blythe Riverside 7 November-22 New Program 20 annually Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 42 Approved None College of the Desert ADN Palm Desert Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 42 Approved None Riverside City College ADN Riverside Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 260 annually, increase of 80 Approved None Riverside City College ADN Private Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 260 annually, increase of 80 Approved None Marsha Fuerst SON - Glendale ADN - Private Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 New Campus 135 annually Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 66 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155 for 2024 only, increase 6 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private Rancho Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Rancho Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually, increase 460 Approved None Mats San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually, increase 15 Approved None Mats San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually, increase 24 Approved None Metallification Research College SSN - Private Corna Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually	Palo Verde College	ADN	Blythe	Riverside	7	February-21	Feasibility	20 annually	Approved	None
San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside T August-22 Enrollment Increase Fiverside City College ADN Palm Desert Riverside	Concordia University	BSN - Private	Ontario	San Bernardino	7	November-22	New Campus	216 annually	Approved	None
Loma Linda University BSN - Private Loma Linda San Bernardino 7 August-22 Enrollment Increase from 168 to 210, increase 42 Approved None College of the Desert ADN Palm Desert Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment increase from 120 to 200, increase 80 Approved None Riverside City College ADN Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 120 to 200, increase 80 Approved None Marsha Fuerat SON - Glendale ADN - Private Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 120 to 200, increase 80 Approved None None Marsha Fuerat SON - Glendale ADN - Private Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 120 to 260 annually, increase 60 Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155 for 2024 only, increase 6 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None Approved None BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually, increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 Movember-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 Movember-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 Movember-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Mesteliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Ame	Palo Verde College	ADN	Blythe	Riverside	7	November-22	New Program	20 annually	Approved	None
College of the Desert ADN Palm Desert Riverside 7 August-22 Enrollment increase from 120 to 200, increase 80 Approved None Riverside City College ADN Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 260 annually, increase of 80 Approved None Marsha Fuerst SON - Glendale ADN - Private Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 New Campus 135 annually Approved None Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 66 Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155 for 2024 oally, increase 30 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 90 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 November-23 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually (increase 460 Approved None Ontario 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually (increase 15 Approved None Ontario 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually (increase 24 Approved None Ontario Ontario 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None Ontario Ontario 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (increase 24 Approved None Ontario Ontario 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (increase 24 Approved None Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (increase 24 Approved None Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (increase 24 Approved None Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (increase 24 Approved None Ontario Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to	San Joaquin Valley College	ADN - Private	Rancho Mirage	Riverside	7	August-22	New Campus	96 annually	Approved	None
Riverside City College ADN Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 Enrollment Increase from 180 to 260 annually, increase of 80 Approved None Marsha Fuerst SON - Glendale ADN - Private Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 New Campus 135 annually Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 66 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155 for 2024 oally, increase 30 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Enrollment Increase from 500 to 360 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually, increase 15 Approved None Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually, increase 24 Approved None Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Approved None Mestcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Approved None Approved None Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Approved None Approved None Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Approved None Approved None Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Approved None Riverside 17 May-25 New Program 120 annually A	Loma Linda University	BSN - Private	Loma Linda	San Bernardino	7	August-22	Enrollment Increase	from 168 to 210, increase 42	Approved	None
Marsha Fuerst SON - Glendale ADN - Private Riverside Riverside 7 February-23 New Campus 135 annually Approved None San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155 for 2024 only, increase 30 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 90 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Increase 120 annually Approved Yes Increase 120 Approved	College of the Desert	ADN	Palm Desert	Riverside	7	August-22	Enrollment increase	from 120 to 200, increase 80	Approved	None
San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 66 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None American Career College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155 for 2024 only, increase 30 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 30 annually Approved None West College ADN - Private Corona Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Feasibility 80 annually Message From 500 to 360 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Increase 1 From 500 to 360 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Increase 1 From 500 to 360 annually, increase 460 Approved None Increase 1 From 500 to 25 annually (winter), increase 1 Approved None Message Increase ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase From 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 1 Approved None Message Increase ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase From 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None Message Increase ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase From 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase From 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Message Increase ADN Approved None Approved Resolution Friends Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Approved None Message Increase	Riverside City College	ADN	Riverside	Riverside	7	February-23	Enrollment Increase	from 180 to 260 annually, increase of 80	Approved	None
San Joaquin Valley College ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 May-23 Enrollment Increase from 96 students to 102 annually, increase 6 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 90 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Enrollment Increase from 500 to 960 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None United University ELM - Private San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Approved None ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	Marsha Fuerst SON - Glendale	ADN - Private	Riverside	Riverside	7	February-23	New Campus	135 annually	Approved	None
American Career College ADN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 August-23 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155 for 2024 only, increase 30 Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 90 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Enrollment Increase from 500 to 960 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually, increase 15 Approved None United University ELM - Private San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None None	San Joaquin Valley College	ADN - Private	Ontario	Riverside	7	May-23	Enrollment Increase	from 36 students to 102 annually, increase 66	Approved	None
United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 90 annually Approved None Westcliff University BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Enrollment Increase from 500 to 960 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually, increase 15 Approved None Loma Linda University ELM - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	San Joaquin Valley College	ADN - Private	Rancho Mirage	Riverside	7	May-23	Enrollment Increase	from 96 students to 102 annually, increase 6	Approved	None
Westcliff University BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 August-23 Feasibility 80 annually Approved None United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Enrollment Increase From 500 to 360 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually, increase 75 Approved None Loma Linda University ELM - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None	American Career College	ADN - Private	Ontario	Riverside	7	August-23	Enrollment Increase	from 125 to 155 for 2024 only , increase 30	Approved	None
United Nursing College ADN - Private Murrieta Riverside 7 November-23 New Program 120 annually Approved None West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Enrollment Increase from 500 to 360 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually, increase 75 Approved None Loma Linda University ELM - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	United Nursing College	ADN - Private	Murrieta	Riverside	7	August-23	Feasibility	90 annually	Approved	None
West Coast University BSN - Private Ontario Riverside 7 November-23 Enrollment Increase from 500 to 960 annually, increase 460 Approved Yes Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually, increase 75 Approved None Loma Linda University ELM - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	Westcliff University	BSN - Private	Corona	Riverside	7	August-23	Feasibility	80 annually	Approved	None
West Coast University BSN - Private Untario Riverside (November-23 Increase Prom 500 to 950 annually, increase 460 Approved Test Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	United Nursing College	ADN - Private	Murrieta	Riverside	7	November-23	New Program	120 annually	Approved	None
Loma Linda University BSN - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 200 to 275 annually, increase 75 Approved None Loma Linda University ELM - Private San Bernardino San Bernardino 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15 Approved None Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	West Coast University	BSN - Private	Ontario	Riverside	7	November-23		from 500 to 960 annually, increase 460	Approved	Yes
Mt. San Jacinto College ADN Menifee Valley Riverside 7 May-24 Enrollment Increase from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24 Approved None American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	Loma Linda University	BSN - Private	San Bernardino	San Bernardino	7	May-24		from 200 to 275 annually, increase 75	Approved	None
American Career College BSN - Private Ontario Ontario 7 November-24 Enrollment Increase from 125 to 155, increase 30 Approved None Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	Loma Linda University	ELM - Private	San Bernardino	San Bernardino	7	May-24	Enrollment Increase	from 10 to 25 annually (winter), increase 15	Approved	None
Westcliff BSN - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 120 annually Approved None Westcliff ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	Mt. San Jacinto College	ADN	Menifee Valley	Riverside	7	May-24	Enrollment Increase	from 48 to 72 annually, increase 24	Approved	None
Westcliff ELM - Private Corona Riverside 7 May-25 New Program 40 annually Approved None	American Career College	BSN - Private	Ontario	Ontario	7	November-24	Enrollment Increase	from 125 to 155, increase 30	Approved	None
	Westcliff	BSN - Private	Corona	Riverside	7	May-25	New Program	120 annually	Approved	None
Calfornia Nurses Educational In ADN - Private Rancho Mirage Riverside 7 August-25 Feasibility 90 annually Approved None	Westcliff	ELM - Private	Corona	Riverside	7	May-25	New Program	40 annually	Approved	None
	Calfornia Nurses Educational Ir	ADN - Private	Rancho Mirage	Riverside	7	August-25	Feasibility	90 annually	Approved	None

August 18, 2025

Ms. Heather Hunter
Nursing Education Consultant
California Board of Registered Nursing

Re: Major Curriculum Revision-Request Increased Enrollment Executive Summary

Proposed Change

California Baptist University (CBU) College of Nursing (CON) requests authorization to increase the enrollment of our nursing programs. In the traditional Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) program we request to increase enrollment by 24 students annually, beginning in Fall 2026, bringing the total annual capacity from 196 to 220 students, 110 admitted each fall and spring semester. In the Entry-Level Master of Science in Nursing (ELMSN) program we request to increase enrollment by 8 students annually, beginning in Summer of 2026 to increase enrollment from 40 to 48 students per year.

Reason for the Change

Since 2020, in the BSN program, we have had to deny 33.6% to 46.4% qualified applicants. In the ELMSN program, since 2020, we have denied 35% to 66% qualified applicants. CBU has a strong history of serving local populations. The rationale for the request to increase enrollment is to help address the urgent workforce shortage by providing more professional nurse graduates who can serve communities with high healthcare disparities while maintaining the high academic standards and clinical competencies expected by the California (CA) Board of Registered Nursing (BRN). The CA and national nursing workforce needs more Registered Nurses (RNs), particularly as hospitals, clinics, and primary care facilities strive to meet the needs of diverse and growing populations. As the demand for highly qualified RNs continues to grow, particularly in underserved communities and high-needs areas, our institution seeks to expand its capacity to educate the next generation of professional nurses. In the Inland Empire, comprised of Riverside and San Bernardino Counties, the area CBU serves, there are six Registered Nurse Shortage Areas (RNSA). In Riverside County, there are three RNSA, Riverside, area 66, classified as low severity, Indio/Cathedral City, area 70, medium severity, and Blythe, area 67, high severity. In San Bernardino County, there are three RNSA, two medium severity, Victorville/Hesperia, area 53, and Twentynine Palms/Yucca Valley, area 61 and one high severity, Needles, area 58. These RNSA designations suggest that in the geographical area CBU serves, there continues to be a nursing shortage. Accepting additional students to CBU nursing programs would help the RN workforce.

Adequacy of Resources

We are committed to ensuring that an increase in enrollment does not compromise the quality of education. Our school has conducted a comprehensive review of its current facilities, clinical partnerships, and faculty resources. We are confident that the physical and academic infrastructure can support the proposed increase in enrollment.

Funding

The increase in enrollment will increase funding for our programs through increased tuition income. Both the BSN and ELMSN programs receive the Song-Brown grant and have sufficient funding. The CON has an adequate budget to support growth.

Faculty Expansion

Current didactic courses in the BSN program require 8.17 full time equivalent (FTEs) annually. This change would require 12.25 FTEs annually, an increase of 4.08 FTE faculty. Current clinical courses require 20.8 FTEs annually. This change would require 24 FTEs annually, an increase of 3.2 FTE faculty. In the ELMSN program, the proposed change would require no changes for didactic courses and would require one to two additional clinical rotations in the clinical courses. We will maintain optimal student-to-faculty ratios, offering personalized, high-quality education. We currently have 31 full time faculty who teach in undergraduate/prelicensure courses, sufficient to support the increase in enrollment. There is also a robust pool of 72 high quality, BRN approved, BSN and graduate prepared adjunct faculty to staff needed undergraduate and prelicensure courses and clinical rotations.

Facilities, Equipment, Space, and Supplies

We have sufficient facilities, including classroom space, skills labs, and our state-of-theart simulation center, accredited by the Society for Simulation in Healthcare (SSH), all to enhance the learning experience for our current and future students. We have created a nurse-led mobile health clinic which provides clinical experiences for BSN and ELMSN student nurses and serves needs of local residents. We have sufficient capital equipment and supplies to support the increase in enrollment. This year alone, we have purchased additional high-fidelity mannequins, intravenous (IV) pumps, a medication administration system, and new virtual reality (VR) headsets and software to improve the experiences of our students.

Student Support Services

We have sufficient student support services, including academic advising, tutoring, and career counseling, to ensure that all students receive the guidance and resources needed to succeed in the program and their subsequent nursing careers. This change will not affect current nursing students.

Availability of Clinical Placements

We have strong clinical practice partnerships and anticipate no issues in obtaining rotations. Our school is actively working with local healthcare institutions to secure additional clinical placements for students. In fact, in the Fall 2025 semester, in preparation for the additional need for clinical placements, CBU has secured adequate clinical rotations to support the increase in the number of students in both the BSN and the ELMSN programs and we plan to maintain these placements for the enrollment increase. We enjoy strong clinical partnerships where our student nurses thrive in the provision of nursing services.

Forty-nine clinical practice partners were notified of the proposed increase in student enrollment. Additionally, the Inland Empire Consortium was notified. We received 7 positive responses from the Boys and Girls Club on 5.30.35, Corona Regional Medical Center (CRMC) on 6.20.25, Loma Linda Veterans Administration Hospital on 5.28.25, Patton State Hospital on 6.27.25, Riverside University Health System MHITF on 5.28.25, Riverside University Health System on 6.13.25, and Supportive Health Group on 6.4.25. One neutral question was asked by Inland Valley Medical Center on 5.27.25 and was responded to the same day with clarification. Forty-one clinical practice partners did not respond.

Licensing Examination, Graduation, and Retention Rates
Our BSN and ELMSN nursing programs have demonstrated high graduation rates of
97% to 100% and retention rates of 99.97% to 100% with very low attrition. Both
programs have had increasingly strong NCLEX pass rates of 91% in the BSN program
and 95% in the ELMSN program, well above the benchmark.

Graduation Rates

BSN	Academic Year	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024
		2020	2021	2022	2023	2024
Alur	mni					
0	n Time Graduates	161	147	188	185	173
	Late Graduates	C	1	0	0	0
Attri	ition					
	Withdrawal	1	1	1	0	0
	Dismissed	C	2	1	0	4
	Excluded	C	3	2	8	11
In P	rogress					
	Still in Progress	C	8	0	0	5
Enr	ollment					
	Program Entrees	162	162	192	192	192
Gra	duation rate					
	Completion Rate	99%	97%	99%	100%	98%
ELM	SN					
		2020 2	2021 20)22 20	202	4
Alur	mni					

On Time					
Graduates	40	36	37	40	40
Late Graduates	1	0	0	0	0
Attrition					
Withdrawal	0	0	2	0	0
Dismissed	0	0	1	1	0
Excluded	0	0	0	0	0
In Progress					
Still in Progress	0	3	0	0	0
Enrollment					
Program Entrees	41	39	40	40	40
Graduation rate					
Completion Rate	98%	100%	93%	98%	100%

Retention Rates BSN

Admitted	Percent Retention
Spring 2023	100%
Fall 2023	99.99% (1 withdraw)
Spring 2024	100%
Fall 2024	99.97% (2 withdraws; one LOA)

ELMSN

Admitted	Percent Retention
2023	100%
2024	100%

NCLEX Pass Rates Calendar Year

<u>2020</u> <u>2021</u> <u>2022</u> <u>2023</u> <u>2024</u>

BSN	88%	84%	85%	88%	91%
ELMSN	82%	89%	78%	95%	95%
Academic Y	'ear				
	<u> 2020 -</u> <u> 2021</u>	<u>2021 -</u> <u>2022</u>	<u>2022 -</u> <u>2023</u>	<u>2023 -</u> <u>2024</u>	<u>2024 -</u> <u>2025</u>
BSN	88%	85%	85%	92%	83%
ELMSN	86%	84%	81%	95%	

Program Notification

Twenty BRN approved nursing programs within a 50-mile radius were notified of this proposed increase in student enrollment. Three schools replied in support including Arizona College of Nursing on 6.2.25, College of the Desert on 6.9.25, and Riverside City College on 5.21.25. Seventeen schools did not respond.

Curriculum

The proposed enrollment increase will not negatively affect the current curriculum as approved on the EDP-P-05, EDP-P-06, or EDP-P-17. There are no changes to the courses, sequencing, or length of the program. There are no changes to the approved direct patient care hours.

Conclusion

The proposed enrollment increase will yield measurable benefits, including:

- An increase in the number of licensed RNs entering the workforce, particularly in high-need areas.
- Continued low attrition, and high retention, graduation rates, NCLEX pass rates, and employment rates, demonstrating the effectiveness of our program.
- Strengthened partnerships with healthcare facilities, creating a pipeline for student placements and post-graduation employment.

We will regularly assess the impact of the enrollment increase through ongoing monitoring of student success rates, faculty performance, and clinical training effectiveness. We firmly believe that increasing the enrollment capacity of our nursing program will not only meet the immediate demand for RNs in CA but also contribute to the long-term sustainability of the healthcare workforce in the state.

We respectfully request your approval to proceed with this important initiative. We are confident that this expansion will enhance our ability to serve both our students and the healthcare community at large. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Verwa Hamilton

Teresa Hamilton, PhD, RN, CNE Program Director, Associate Dean, Professor College of Nursing California Baptist University 8432 Magnolia Avenue, Riverside, CA 92504 951.343.4956 thamilton@calbaptist.edu



Agenda Item 5.2.2

Discussion and possible action regarding a request for an enrollment increase for an approved prelicensure nursing program: Marsha Fuerst School of Nursing Associate Degree Nursing Program

Supporting materials will be distributed separately

BRN Education/Licensing Committee | October 21, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Education/Licensing Committee Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 5.2.3 DATE: October 21, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action regarding a request for an enrollment

increase for an approved prelicensure nursing programs University of California Irvine Baccalaureate Degree and Entry Level Master's Degree

(enrollment increase)

REQUESTED BY: Michelle Johnson, Nursing Education Consultant

BACKGROUND: University of California, Irvine (UCI) Baccalaureate Degree (BSN) and Entry Level Master's (ELM) Degree, Sue and Bill Gross School of Nursing, located in Irvine, California, in Orange County (Region 9), states they are requesting an enrollment increase to meet the demands of highly qualified students pursue nursing education.

Current enrollment pattern:

BSN - 50 students annually

ELM - 40 students annually

Enrollment increase request:

BSN - 70 students annually (an increase of 20 students annually)

ELM - 60 students annually (an increase of 20 students annually)

For a total increase of 40 students annually

Recently the program received over 7,000 applicants for a capacity of 50 enrollments into the BSN program, admitting less than 1% of the qualified students. The ELM program received 564 qualified applicants for a capacity of 40 enrollments, resulting in a 14% admission rate.

UCI has the infrastructure and the current faculty are able to support this enrollment request. UCI plans to focus on utilizing their current clinical affiliations and the UCI Health expansion of five (5) additional hospitals to support any additional clinical placement needs. UCI is a member of the Orange County Long Beach (OCLB) Consortium for Nursing which facilitated "resource planning and joint scheduling to accommodate the increased student volume." This collaborative planning for UCI's planned expansion was to minimize any disruptions towards clinical placements. Please see the supporting clinical collaboration documentation.

UCI is an accredited institution by the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE) and is approved with the BRN since 2006. UCI was in full compliance following a recent 2023 joint BRN and CCNE site visit. A recent updated curriculum revision was completed to meet the requirements per 16 CCR section 1426 and BPC section 2786.

NCLEX Pass Rates	
BSN	ELM
2019-2020 = 91.07%	2019-2020 = 94.74%
2020-2021 = 88.64%	2020-2021 = 100%
2021-2022 = 83.33%	2021-2022 = 95.24%
2022-2023 = 86%	2022-2023 = 94.74%
2023-2024 = 95.83%	2023-2024 = 94.44%

Attrition Rates

BSN ELM

2019-2020 = 8%2019-2020 = 5.3%2020-2021 = 9%2020-2021 = 0%2021-2022 = 4%2021-2022 = 3%2022-2023 = 4%2022-2023 = 0%2023-2024 = 12%2023-2024 = 0%

Total cost of program

BSN - \$76,321 ELM - \$73,858

NEXT STEP: Place on Board agenda.

PERSON TO CONTACT: Michelle Johnson, MSN, RN

Nursing Education Consultant

5.2.3 University of California Irvine – Enrollment Increase

University of California, Irvine (UCI) is a program located in Irvine, California within Orange County (Region 9). UCI is requesting approval to enroll 70 BSN students once (1) a year, and 60 ELM students once (1) a year, which will increase their annual enrollment from 90 to 130 students (adding an additional 40 students to Region 9).

Other programs presented:

There are no (0) other programs requesting enrollment increase(s), new campus(es), or new program(s) within Region 9.

Current approved enrollment:

The program is approved to enroll 50 BSN students a year, and 40 ELM students a year, for a total annual enrollment of 90 students. UCI has not requested an enrollment increase since inception.

Region 9 data 2018-2025

Enrollment decisions for Region 9 have resulted in the growth of 1,072 new students with the approval of nine (9) enrollment increases (880 students annually), and three (3) new programs (192 students annually).

Two (2) requests for enrollment increases in Region 9 were denied: Western Governor's University (30 students annually) and Stanbridge University (40 students annually), for a total of 70 students denied. One (1) request for enrollment increase in Region 9 was deferred: CNI College (120 students annually); however, this request was later approved to 50 students annually by the Board during August 2024 meeting. One (1) feasibility study request in Region 9 was deferred: Westcliff University (80 students annually), later approved in Board August 2023 meeting.

N	ursing Program	Information					Board Meeting Information		
School	Program Tyr-	City	County	Regic	Meeting Dat	Request Type	Enrollment Increase Request	Action	Adjustme 💺
Western Governor's University	BSN - Private	Santa Ana	Orange	9	April-18	Enrollment Increase	from 86 to 116 annually, increase 30 (DENIED)	Denied	None
Vangard University	BSN - Private	Costa Mesa	Orange	9	April-18	New Program	30 annually	Approved	None
CNI College	ADN - Private	Santa Ana	Orange	9	November-19	Enrollment Increase	from 94 to 200 annually, increase 106	Approved	None
Pacific College	ADN - Private	Costa Mesa	Orange	9	April-19	New Program	90 Annually	Approved	None
Concordia University	BSN - Private	Irvine	Orange	9	November-21	Enrollment Increase	from 128 to 192 annually, increase 24	Approved	Yes
Stanbridge University	BSN - Private	Irvine	Orange	9	November-21	Enrollment Increase	from 90 to 120 annually, increase 30	Approved	Yes
Stanbridge University	BSN - Private	Irvine	Orange	9	August-21	Enrollment Increase	from 90 to 140 annually, increase 50	Approved	None
Sri Sai Krish Institute	ADN - Private	Stanton	Orange	9	February-21	Feasibility	72 annually	Approved	None
Concordia University	BSN - Private	Irvine	Orange	9	November-22	Enrollment Increase	from 152 to 192 annually, increase 40	Approved	None
Sri Sai Krish Institute	ADN - Private	Stanton	Orange	9	February-22	New Program	72 annually	Approved	None
Stanbridge University	BSN - Private	Irvine	Orange	9	February-23	Enrollment Increase	from 120 to 160 annually, increase 40 (DENIED)	Denied	None
Golden West College	ADN	Huntington Beach	Orange	9	February-23	Enrollment Increase	from 120 to 200 annually, increase 80	Approved	None
CNI College	BSN - Private	Santa Ana	Orange	9	February-23	Enrollment Increase	from 200 to 320 annually, increase 120	Deferred	None
Westcliff University	BSN - Private	Irvine	Orange	9	February-23	Feasibility	80 annually	Deferred	None
West Coast University	BSN - Private	Aneheim	Orange	9	November-23	Enrollment Increase	from 500 to 960 annually, increase 460	Approved	Yes
CNI College	BSN - Private	Santa Ana	Orange	9	August-24	Enrollment Increase	from 200 to 250 annually, increase 50	Approved	Yes
Stanbridge University	BSN - Private	Irvine	Orange	9	February-25	Enrollment Increase	from 120 to 160 annually, increase 40	Approved	None

ACADEMIC COLLABORATION FORM

When selecting a new clinical agency or facility for student placement, the program shall take into consideration the impact that an additional group of students would have on students of other nursing programs already assigned to the agency or facility. Programs should include information on how approved nursing programs collaborate and coordinate with other approved nursing programs, or regional planning consortiums that utilize the same clinical facility.

		Information fron	Information from the School(s)				
Clinical Facility Site	Nursing programs already assigned to the agency/facility	Facility Impact Assess- ment (Y/N)	Number of Students	Days/Hours	Units	Academic response to facility information	If impact, collaboration efforts with school
UCI Health - Orange	 UCI Azusa Pacific University CSU, Fullerton CSU, Los Angeles CNI College Concordia University Irvine Cypress College Grand Canyon University Loma Linda University Regis College University of Colorado University of San Francisco 	Y	BSN: Maternity/OB: 7 stu x6 grps =40 students Crit/Care: 8 students x4 grp = 28 students Med/Surg: 8 students x5 grps = 40 students Psychiatry: 6 students x7 grp = 40 students MEPN/ELM: Maternity/OB: 8 stu x5 grps =40 students Crit/Care: 8 stu x4 grp = 24 students	PM/ Sat/ Sat PM/ Sund • Med/Surg: Tues/ Thurs/ Thurs PM/ Sat/ Sat PM/ Fri/ Sun	Maternity/OB Med-Surg/Critical Care Psych/Mental Health	Informed and collaborated with affiliated nursing programs through Orange County Long Beach Consortium (OCLB). Announcements made in our quarterly Consortium meetings and follow-up emails sent to consortium members. Communicated via email and 1:1 meeting with program directors of plans to expand but to primarily utilize existing approvals to	Communicated with partnering programs that in our assessment that any new requests, however minimal, will target unused rotations including nights, evenings, and weekends. Close partnership with UCI Health to collaborate with other schools on managing schedules and requests.

	Vanguard UniversityWest Coast University	 Med/Surg: 8 stud x 3grps= 24 students Psychiatry: 6 students x7 grp = 40 students 	Sun/ Fri PM/ Sat/ Tues Psychiatry: Tues/Thurs/ThursPM/ Fri/ Fri PM/ Sat/ Sun		maximize clinical group sizes.	
Children's Hospital of Orange County (CHOC)	 UCI CSU Fullerton Concordia University Irvine, Santa Ana College Saddleback College Cypress College Golden West College Long Beach Community College University of San Francisco Biola University 	Pediatrics 12 stu x 2 grps= 24 students MEPN/ELM: • Pediatrics: 12 stu x 2 grps= 24 students	MEPN/ELM: • Pediatric: Tues/Friday/ Sun	Peds Med-Surg Critical Care/Cardiac ICU	Current student approvals are not maximized, and we plan to utilize current approved assignments to maximum capacity.	No impact on associated programs foreseen. We can utilize existing approvals to maximize group sizes without requesting additional days and shifts.
Pretend City, Irvine	• UCI	 Pediatrics Community: 5 stu x 2 grps= 10 students Psych Community: 5 students x3 grp = 15 students 	 Pediatric Community: Friday/ Thursday Psych Community: Thurs/Friday/Tues MEPN/ELM: Pediatric Community: Friday/ Thursday 	Pediatric Community Psych Community	Community pediatric site is currently expanding to larger venue. Can accommodate increase student enrollment. Does not affiliate with	None

		5 stu x student • Psyc Com stude	etrics munity: 2 grps= 10 ts	Psych Community: Thurs/Friday/Tues		other nursing programs currently.	
UCI Health – Fountain Valley	 CSU, Fullerton Santa Ana College Cypress College Golden West College 	7 stu = 14 • Pedia 12 stu 24 stude = 8 s • Med/stude grps stude MEPN • Mat 12 stu = 24 st • Pedia 8 stu x student • Crit/C x1 gr stude • Med/stude •	a x2 grps students atrics: x2 grps= dents Care: 8 ents x1 grp tudents Surg: 8 ents x2 = 16 ents ME ME ME ME Care: 8 sturp = 8	Maternity/OB: Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun Pediatrics: Tues/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun Crit/Care: Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun Med/Surg: Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun PN/ELM: Maternity/OB Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun Pediatrics Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun Crit/Care Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun Med/Surg Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun	Maternity/OB: Perinatal Pediatrics Crit/Care: ICU/Adult Crit Medical/Surgical	Informed and collaborated with affiliated nursing programs through Orange County Long Beach Consortium (OCLB). Announcements made in our quarterly Consortium meetings and follow-up emails sent to consortium members. Communicated via email and 1:1 meeting with program directors of plans to expand. Although this site recently purchased by UCI Health system is not incorporated within the consortium	Communicated with partnering programs in the OCLB Consortium that in our assessment that any new requests, however minimal, will target unused rotations including nights, evenings, and weekends.

UCI Health – Los Alamitos	 CSU, Fullerton Santa Ana College Cypress College Golden West College 	Y	BSN: • Crit/Care: 8 students x1 grp = 8 students • Med/Surg: 8 students x1 grp = 8 students MEPN/ELM: • Crit/Care: 8 stu x1 grp = 8 students • Med/Surg: 8 students • Med/Surg: 8 students	Med/Surg:	Crit/Care: ICU/Adult Crit Medical/Surgical	organization yet, any new requests will target unused rotations. Informed and collaborated with affiliated nursing programs through Orange County Long Beach Consortium (OCLB). Announcements made in our quarterly Consortium meetings and follow-up emails sent to consortium members. Communicated via email and 1:1 meeting with program directors of plans to expand. Although this	Communicated with partnering programs in the OCLB Consortium that in our assessment that any new requests, however minimal, will target unused rotations including nights, evenings, and weekends.
						1:1 meeting with program directors of plans to expand.	

UCI Health - Placentia Linda	• CSU Fullerton	Y	• Crit/Care: 8 students x1 grp = 8 students • Med/Surg: 8 students x2 grps = 16 students • Crit/Care: 8 stu x1 grp = 8 students • Med/Surg: 8 students • Med/Surg: 8 students • Med/Surg: 8 students	Med/Surg: Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun MEPN/ELM: Crit/Care Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun Med/Surg Fri/ Sat/ Thurs/Sun	Crit/Care: ICU/Adult Crit Medical/Surgical	Informed and collaborated with affiliated nursing programs through Orange County Long Beach Consortium (OCLB). Announcements made in our quarterly Consortium meetings and follow-up emails sent to consortium members. Communicated via email and 1:1 meeting with program directors of plans to expand. Although this site recently purchased by UCI Health system is not incorporated within the consortium organization yet, any new requests will target unused rotations.	Communicated with partnering programs in the OCLB Consortium that in our assessment that any new requests, however minimal, will target unused rotations including nights, evenings, and weekends.
UCI Health - Irvine	• UCI	N	BSN: • Crit/Care: 8 students x2	BSN: ● Crit/Care: Fri/Sun	Crit/Care: ICU/Adult Crit	The new hospital is planning to open in	None

			grps = 16 students • Med/Surg: 8 students x2 grps = 16 students MEPN/ELM: • Crit/Care: 8 stu x2 grps = 16 students • Med/Surg: 8 stud x 2 grps= 16 students	Med/Surg: Fri/ Sun MEPN/ELM: Crit/Care Sat/ Thurs Med/Surg Thurs/Sun	•	Medical/Surgical	December of 2025. No other program is currently affiliated with the new site. Additional students are not anticipated to begin rotations at the new site until the Winter quarter of 2027.	
Regents Point, Irvine	UCI West Coast University	Y	BSN: • Med/Surg: 12 students x 3 grps = 36 students MEPN/ELM: • Med/Surg: 12 stud x 3grps= 36 students	Med/Surg: Mon/Fri/Sat MEPN/ELM: Med/Surg Mon/Fri	•	Medical/Surgical	We are currently not maximizing the capacity of students at this site. Each clinical group will be maximized to accommodate additional students.	We will be maximizing clinical groups to avoid requesting additional days and shifts. Does not affect other program rotations.



Executive Summary

BS in Nursing Science & Master of Science in Nursing Science (Masters Entry Program in Nursing - MEPN)

The UCI Sue and Bill Gross School of Nursing (SBGSON) has experienced rapid growth and transformation since its founding. Originally launched in 2006 as a Program in Nursing Science within the School of Medicine, it admitted its first BSN cohort in 2007, followed by a master's program in 2009. Over the next decade, the school expanded to include a PhD in Nursing Science (2013), the Master's Entry Program in Nursing (MEPN) in 2017, and a Doctor of Nursing Practice (DNP) program in 2019. A transformative moment came in 2016 when philanthropists Sue and Bill Gross donated \$40 million, the largest gift in UCI history, to establish the official School of Nursing approved by the UC Regents in 2017.

The school has since continued to expand its facilities and academic reach, culminating in the opening of the Sue & Bill Gross Nursing and Health Sciences Hall in 2022. This 65,000-square-foot state-of-the-art building includes high-fidelity simulation labs, OSCE exam rooms, debrief spaces, and technology-enabled classrooms designed to support hands-on, interprofessional education. As of 2024, the school enrolls over 300 undergraduate and graduate students, supported by 35 full-time faculty and over \$17 million in research funding. It is recognized for its leadership in nursing science, community health, and inclusive excellence, with more than 80% of students identifying as Black, Indigenous, and People of Color (BIPOC). The BSN program was recently ranked #26 nationally by *U.S. News & World Report*, reflecting the school's rapid rise in national prominence and commitment to advancing nursing education, research, and practice.

Proposed change

The SBGSON is proposing an increase in enrollment for both of its Pre-Licensure Programs. For the BS Program, SBGSON is requesting an increase of 20 students annually,



raising the current approved maximum from 50 to 70 students per year. Simultaneously, for the MEPN, the school proposes an increase of 20 students annually, which would elevate the current approved maximum from 40 to 60 students per year. If approved, these changes would significantly expand the capacity of both nursing programs at UCI SBGSON, allowing for a larger number of highly qualified students to pursue nursing education.

With these approved changes, the SBGSON would enroll a total annual cohort of Pre-Licensure students across the two programs of 130 students. To ensure growth that supports the educational advancement of pre-licensure nursing students across both undergraduate and graduate pathways, a two-year incremental rollout is planned to begin with the 26/27 academic year and is outlined in the table below.

	Plan for Enrollment Expansion												
Academic	JR	SR	MEPN-1	MEPN-	Total	Total BS	Total MEPN	Total					
Year	JN	SN	IVIEFIN-I	2	Total	Additional	Additional	Additional					
2025-2026	50	50	40	40	180								
2026-2027	60	50	50	40	200	+10	+10	+20					
2027-2028	70	60	60	50	240	+10	+10	+20					
2028-2029	70	70	60	60	260								
2029-2030	70	70	60	60	260								

Reason for the change

The proposed increase in enrollment for our pre-licensure programs, including both the BS and MEPN tracks, is driven by several compelling factors. Primarily, it addresses the consistently high demand for these programs, reflecting the growing need for skilled nursing professionals in California and beyond. In our most recent admission cycle, we had over 7000 freshman and transfer applicants for 50 spots in our BS program, admitting less than 1% of qualified students. For our MEPN program, we received 564 qualified applications for 40 spots, resulting in a 14% admission rate. The UCI SBGSON is uniquely positioned to meet the demand for nurses trained at the highest level as one of only two R1 research-intensive academic institutions offering undergraduate nursing education in the state. As such, we place



a significant emphasis on nursing research and the application of evidence-based practices, ensuring our graduates are at the forefront of improving patient outcomes. All students receive Six Sigma training, equipping them with valuable skills in data-driven, quality improvement initiatives - a critical asset in today's healthcare landscape.

Furthermore, our faculty and staff are dedicated to supporting student learning by collaborating with our Director of Teaching Excellence and Innovation, who provides continuous faculty development and mentorship to enhance learning outcomes, as well as our in-school instructional designer, who promotes technological and digital education. Within the College of Health Sciences, students also have access to a dedicated medical librarian who supports their learning and research throughout the program.

The SBGSON is home to one of the only provisionally accredited simulation centers in the region, offering students a safe, immersive environment to practice complex, real-life clinical scenarios to further bridge their skills and experiential learning. The Clinical Skills and Simulation Center has the capacity to grow to address the increase in cohort size and complexity that may be necessary in the future. Additionally, since our last BRN reaccreditation in 2023, we have added two new tenure-track professors of teaching and two full-time clinical faculty teaching in pre-licensure programs that will support our enrollment growth. In total, the SBGSON has 15 tenure-track senate faculty, 18 full-time clinical faculty, and 27 full-time staff to support students in education, research, and evidence-based clinical practice.

Our graduates are well known for their cultural competence, technological proficiency, and leadership skills - attributes that are increasingly vital in today's healthcare environment. Our consistently high NCLEX-RN® pass rates, high retention rates, and low attrition rates demonstrate our unwavering commitment to student support and success, further validating our readiness for growth as seen below.

	NCLEX-RN® Pass Rates										
Program	20-21	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25						
BS GITY	86.7%	83.3%	87.8%	93.6%	91.5%						
MEPN	100.0%	95.0%	95.0%	94.4%	100.0%						



	Retention and Attrition Rates												
Program	19-	19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24											
	Ret. Att. Ret. Att. Ret. Att. Ret. Att. Ret. Att.									Att.			
BS	90%	8%	79%	9%	92%	4%	96%	4%	100%	12%			
MEPN	84.2%	5.3%	95%	0%	98%	3%	100%	0%	92%	0%			

UCI's strategic location in Orange County, with its diverse communities and healthcare facilities, provides our students with unparalleled clinical experiences. Our strong partnerships with local healthcare providers ensure that our expanded student body will have access to quality clinical placements. Our proposed increase is further supported by our close partnership with UC Irvine Health system and their continued growth allowing for additional clinical placement support. UCI Health's expansion with the acquisition of four community hospitals and the opening of a new, 144-bed acute care hospital in Irvine planned to open in December of this year will further support our students by providing additional clinical areas offering diverse experiences in patient and community care. Ongoing collaborations with clinical partners have included resource planning and joint scheduling to accommodate the increased student volume, mitigating interruptions of other assigned students from other programs, while maintaining instructor/preceptor ratios and meeting Board of Registered Nursing (BRN) regulations.

How the change will affect the education of students currently enrolled in the program

The proposed increase in enrollment will not negatively affect the quality of education of our students currently enrolled in our programs. In 2022, the SBGSON moved into a new, dedicated, 65,000 sq. ft. state-of-the-art building which includes multiple large modern smart active classrooms, a large lecture auditorium, and multiple small group study/meeting rooms that can adequately accommodate an increase in cohort sizes while maintaining a high level of quality instruction. The building also includes a 9,000 sq. ft., advanced simulation center with four modifiable high-fidelity simulation suites, 16-bed high-capacity skills lab, and various



multipurpose clinical/collaborative exam rooms and classrooms that are currently not utilized to its full capabilities. Our school's infrastructure is designed to support additional students in each program and experienced faculty to support all current students and any additional students proposed in the expansion.

How the proposed change will affect clinical facilities utilized

With the proposed increase in enrollment, we are not modifying our current curriculum and clinical mapping. Although SBGSON's plan is to focus on our current clinical affiliations, in addition to UCI Health's expansion of an additional five hospitals, we have secured additional placement commitments from partner facilities and community sites across Orange and Los Angeles Counties to support our current students and the proposed cohort growth. Clinical site expansion efforts have focused on diversified settings, not only including acute care hospitals, but also outpatient centers, public health departments, community organizations, and specialty care clinics to ensure students can access high-quality, comprehensive, across the lifespan clinical experiences. Ongoing collaborations with clinical partners have included resource planning and joint scheduling to accommodate the increased student volume while maintaining preceptor ratios and meeting Board of Registered Nursing (BRN) regulations.

We are also committed to ensuring that our planned enrollment increase will not negatively impact other programs in our region. As a member of the Orange County Long Beach (OCLB) Consortium for Nursing, we have been in communication with member schools about our planned enrollment expansion and committed to open communication, collaborative planning, and resource sharing to minimize and avoid any interruptions to their respective clinical placements. Communications include notifications via email to all member schools and organizations, announcements during the consortium's general meetings, and ongoing collaborative discussions with programs at partnering sites. With the enrollment increase, we plan to utilize current clinical placements where we have not utilized their maximum capacities. Extensive planning has been made to also utilize current availability, including night and



weekend rotations. Additionally, we have obtained letters of support from our partner facilities that our expansion will not negatively impact or displace students from other programs. We recognize the importance of maintaining a balanced and equitable distribution of clinical experiences across all member institutions and plan to maintain our working relationships throughout the expansion rollout.

Extensive planning and internal reviews have been conducted to ensure that this growth is supported by the necessary academic, clinical, and operational infrastructure which you will find outlined within our application. By expanding our programs, we aim to address the critical nursing shortage in California, particularly in underserved communities. With our commitment to academic rigor, innovation, and student success, UCI is uniquely positioned to develop the next generation of nurses and nurse leaders, ultimately contributing to improved health outcomes for residents across the state.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Michael Bueno, PhD, MSN, RN, CNL Pre-Licensure Program Director

HS Associate Clinical Professor





Agenda Item 5.3

Discussion and possible action regarding a request to grant initial approval of a new prelicensure nursing program

BRN Education/Licensing Committee | October 21, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Education/Licensing Committee Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 5.3.1

DATE: October 21, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action regarding a request to grant initial approval of

a new prelicensure nursing program Unitek College, Baccalaureate Degree

Nursing Program (secondary site San Jose)

REQUESTED BY: Mary Ann McCarthy, Supervising Nursing Education Consultant

BACKGROUND: In 2007, the BRN approved Unitek College, Fremont Campus ADN program (LVN-RN). In February 2019, the BRN approved the Fremont Campus nursing program to offer the Baccalaureate Degree in Nursing (BSN) and discontinue the Associate Degree Program. Unitek now has four (4) campus locations: 1) Fremont, approved 2019, with a current annual enrollment of 160, 2) Bakersfield, approved 2019, with a current annual enrollment of 200 and an additional approval of 125 students annually tied to a partnership with Community Health System, 3) Concord, approved in 2020, with a current annual enrollment of 160 and 4) Sacramento, approved 2021, with a current annual enrollment of 120.

Unitek College had their feasibility study approved at the August 2025 Board meeting and is now requesting approval of an alternate prelicensure BSN program at the San Jose campus in Santa Clara County, Region 3 upon acceptance of their initial self-study.

BRN staff has reviewed the initial self-study and has worked with the program to clarify any issues and has determined that the self-study is complete and complies with BRN requirements.

Data presented below is from their accepted feasibility study:

The program is accredited by the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE) since 2014 and is in good standing through 2029.

Enrollment Request: 40 students, three (3) times a year for an annual enrollment of 120 students.

Resources: Existing campus operations personnel and regional/corporate teams are thoroughly prepared and ready to support the proposed BSN program. San Jose students will have the same resources as the other existing Unitek programs. Virtual new campus site tour completed.

Three (3) full-time, and 23 part-time/per diem nursing instructors will be hired for the proposed BSN Program. Faculty recruitment will start 3-4 months before courses begin, with new hires onboarded and trained at least two (2) months in advance.

There are 16 existing BRN-approved prelicensure nursing programs within 53 miles of the Unitek San Jose campus, comprising of 10 ADN, five (5) BSN, and one (1) ELM programs, including Unitek's BSN program at the main Fremont campus. Additionally, there is one (1) program, Gurnick Academy of Medical Arts, which received BRN approval for its feasibility study to establish a BSN program at its nearby San Jose campus in February 2025. Unitek started outreach to nursing program directors in February 2025 regarding the proposed BSN program. As of the date of this application, Unitek has already communicated directly with Gavilan College, Evergreen Valley College (EVC), and Samuel Merritt University (SMU), who were supportive of Unitek's initiative and had no concerns about displacement. Additionally, they plan to announce the proposed BSN program at the next Health Impact Greater Bay Area Academic Practice Partnership (GBAAPP) consortium meeting, as another opportunity to engage with other nursing programs

Programmatic NCLEX annual pass rates* Attrition Rates per annual school survey

2020-21 = New program

No graduates until 2021-22 2019-2020 = 14.5% 2021-22 = 84.11% 2020-2021 = 3.8% 2022-23 = 81.16% 2021-2022 = 2.8% 2023-24 = 88.25% 2022-2023 = 7.3% 2024-25 = 85.84% 2023-2024 = 9%

Total Program Costs: \$152,714

Next Step: Place on Board agenda.

Person to Contact: Mary Ann McCarthy EdD MSN RN PHN

Supervising Nursing Education Consultant

^{*}Individual campus pass rates not available from NCSBN/Pearson Vue

5.5.2 Unitek College – Secondary site San Jose

Unitek College is requesting a secondary site (San Jose) for a BSN program. San Jose in in Santa Clara County, Region 3. Their enrollment request is 40 students, three (3) times a year for an annual enrollment of 120 students.

Other programs presented:

There are no (0) other programs requesting enrollment increase(s), new campus(es), or new program(s) within Region 3.

Unitek's growth over the past five years reflects three (3) new campuses, five (5) enrollment increases, and one (1) feasibility study for this request, a new campus in San Jose:

- Bakersfield campus approved in 2019 with an enrollment of 40 students three (3) times per year, for a total annual enrollment of 120 students.
 - In 2022, an enrollment increase of 80 students annually was approved for the Bakersfield campus with two hospital partners in Kern County (total 200 students annually).
 - o In 2023, an enrollment increase of 75 students annually was approved with hospital partners Community Medical Center in Fresno (total 275 students annually).
- Concord campus approved in 2020 with an enrollment of 40 students three (3) times per year, for a total annual enrollment of 120 students.
- Sacramento campus approved in 2021 with an enrollment of 40 students three (3) times per year, for a total annual enrollment of 120 students.
- Fremont campus was originally approved with an enrollment of 40 students four (4) times per year, for a total annual enrollment of 160 students.
 - In February 2024, approved for an enrollment increase to restart the ADN track for 25 students twice (2) a year, for a total annual enrollment of 50 students to directly support Community Health System in Fresno.
 - In August 2024, approved for an enrollment increase of 40 students annually in their BSN program.
- Concord campus approved for an enrollment increase of 40 students annually in February 2025

Nu	ırsing Program I	nformation					Board Meeting Information	
School	Program Ty	City	County	Regi	Meeting Da	Request Type	Enrollment Increase Request	Action
Unitek College	BSN - Private	Bakersfield	Kern	6	September-19	New Campus	120 annually	Approved
Unitek College	BSN - Private	Concord	Contra Costa	3	November-20	New Campus	120 annually	Approved
Unitek College	BSN - Private	Sacramento	Sacramento	1	November-21	New Campus	160 annually	Approved
Unitek College	ADN - Private	Bakersfield	Kern	6	November-22	Enrollment Increas	from, 120 to 200 annually, increase 80	Approved
Unitek College	BSN - Private	Bakersfield	Kern	6	August-23	Enrollment Increas	from 200 to 275 annually, increase 75 for 3 years	Approved
Unitek College	ADN - Private	Fremont	Frenso	6	February-24	Enrollment Increas	from 0 to 50 annually, increase 50	Approved
Unitek College (Fremont Camp	BSN - Private	Fremont	Alameda	3	August-24	Enrollment Increas	from 160 to 200 annually, increase 40	Approved
Unitek College	BSN - Private	Concord	Contra Costa	3	February-25	Enrollment Increas	from 120 to 160 annually, increase 40	Approved
Unitek College	BSN - Private	San Jose	Santa Clara	3	August-25	Feasibility	120 annually	Approved

Region 3 Data 2018-2025

Enrollment decisions for Region 3 have resulted in the growth of 801 new students through the approval of six (6) enrollment increases (169 students annually), three (3) new campuses (344 students annually), one (1) new program (100 students annually), and three (3) feasibility studies (308 students annually), which includes the approved feasibility study for this request.

One (1) request for a feasibility study in Region 3 was deferred: Medical Career College (48 enrollments); however, this was later approved in November 2024.

Note: The enrollment increase in 2022 was to teach out 15 students from Holy Names University and did not add additional students to this region.

No	ursing Program I	nformation					Board Meeting Information	
School	Program Ty	City	County	Regi	Meeting Da	Request Type	Enrollment Increase Request	Action
Gurnick Academy	BSN - Private	Conord	Contra Costa	3	September-19	New Campus	112 annually	Approved
Unitek College	BSN - Private	Concord	Contra Costa	3	November-20	New Campus	120 annually	Approved
Samuel Merritt University	BSN - Private	Oakland	Alameda	3	June-22	Enrollment Increas	15 student 2022, teachout Holy Names University,	Approved
Los Medanos College	ADN	Pittsburg	Contra Costa	3	May-24	Enrollment Increas	from 40 to 48 annually, increase of 8	Approved
College of Marin	ADN	Kentfield	Marin	3	May-24	Enrollment Increas	from 43 to 52 annually, increase 9	Approved
Unitek College (Fremont Camp	BSN - Private	Fremont	Alameda	3	August-24	Enrollment Increas	from 160 to 200 annually, increase 40	Approved
Medical Career College	ADN - Private	Fremont	Alameda	3	August-24	Feasibility	24 annually in 2025 and 48 annually in 2026	Deferred
Medical Career College	ADN - Private	Fremont	Alameda	3	November-24	Feasibility	48 annually	Approved
Quest Nursing Education Cent	BSN - Private	Oakland	Alameda	3	November-24	Feasibility	140 annually	Approved
Saint Mary's College of Califor	BSN - Private	Moraga	Contra Costa	3	November-24	Feasibility	100 annually	Approved
Samuel Merritt University	BSN - Private	Oakland	Alameda	3	February-25	Enrollment Increas	from 176 to 248 annually, increase 72	Approved
Unitek College	BSN - Private	Concord	Contra Costa	3	February-25	Enrollment Increas	from 120 to 160 annually, increase 40	Approved
Gurnick Academy	BSN - Private	San Jose	Santa Clara	3	February-25	Feasibility	112 annually	Approved
Saint Mary's College of Califor	BSN - Private	Moraga	Contra Costa	3	May-25	New Program	100 annually	Approved
Gurnick Academy	BSN - Private	San Jose	Santa Clara	3	August-25	New Campus	112 annually	Approved
Unitek College	BSN - Private	San Jose	Santa Clara	3	August-25	Feasibility	120 annually	Approved



Unitek College – Self Study for the Addition of a New Campus in San Jose, CA for the Currently Approved Pre-Licensure BSN Program

Unitek College (Unitek) is seeking Board approval to establish a new location for its currently approved prelicensure BSN program at its San Jose campus, located at 6800 Santa Teresa Blvd, Suite 200 and 6850 Santa Teresa Blvd, Suite 20, San Jose, CA. The program will follow the same BRN-approved and CCNE-accredited curriculum, maintain identical organizational and administrative structures, and operate under the same institutional policies and procedures. The program will enroll three cohorts per year of 40 students per cohort, totaling an annual enrollment of 120 students, with an anticipated start in approximately Winter 2025. The feasibility study for this new location was recommended for Board approval by the Education/Licensing Committee at its June 17, 2025, meeting and approved by the full Board on August 20, 2025.

The Self Study contains a total of 42 EDP-P-18 forms. Unitek submitted a feasibility study that included EDP-I-01 forms for 40 clinical sites. Since the submission of the Feasibility Study, Unitek has obtained 2 new clinical agreements and completed EDP-I-01s. Unitek has analyzed clinical placements provided by the clinical facility within the EDP-I-01 forms and determined that the BSN program will not negatively impact existing clinical placements. An Academic Collaboration Form is included documenting Unitek's efforts to address potential impacts and its communication with other programs. The 42 sites include 13 acute care hospitals, with 11 providing advanced medical-surgical experiences. For maternal-newborn nursing, there are 10 facilities (5 acute care hospitals and 5 community-based organizations). Pediatric education is supported by 9 facilities, spanning acute care pediatrics, pediatric mental health, pediatric sub-acute care, and community clinics. Additionally, Unitek has agreements with 2 acute care mental health facilities and 8 behavioral health skilled facilities/clinics. Clinical training also includes 10 skilled and post-acute sites for fundamentals and adult health, as well as 8 facilities for community learning and population health.

Unitek submitted a Feasibility Study summarizing its active outreach with all 17 nursing programs within a 50-mile radius and its communications with 9 programs. Since then, Unitek has also announced the addition of the proposed BSN program at the Health Impact Greater Bay Area Academic Practice Partnership Consortium Meeting on June 16, 2025. Unitek is available and looking forward to collaborating with any nursing program to fully address any concerns that may arise. An updated summary of Unitek's communication and collaboration efforts has been provided.

SECTION 1424(a) – Philosophy and Objectives for Curriculum Structure: Unitek's mission and philosophy is to provide quality programs that are sound in concept, implemented by a competent and dedicated faculty and geared to serve those seeking a solid foundation in the knowledge and skills required to obtain employment in their chosen fields. Unitek's educational mission is made accessible to all constituents through our website, advisory committee meetings, and the online academic catalog. The nursing program's mission reflects the institutional mission related to high-quality, career-oriented education, with a



focus on producing skilled nursing professionals, and emphasizes the preparation of competent, compassionate nurses who are ready to serve diverse populations.

SECTION 1424(b) – Policies and Procedures: Written policies and procedures such as admissions, retention, graduation, dismissal, grievances, transfer/challenge procedures, military coursework and experience are published in the college catalog and publicly available on the school's website, ensuring transparency and accessibility for prospective and current students. There is a systematic evaluation plan (SEP) in place for the evaluation of the whole program, which continuously assesses the accreditation standards and BRN requirements against the established key performance indicators. The data driven process is designed to review the metrics, improve the data collection methods, involve all stakeholders, evaluate the outcomes and create action plans as applicable. The process is transparent, and the data is reported to stakeholders at regularly scheduled meetings such as the Outcomes Committee and Program Advisory Committee.

SECTION 1424(c) – Organizational Chart: Each Unitek campus offering the BSN program is under the direct oversight of an Assistant Director (Dean). The campus level leaders are further supported by National Dean Shevonne Scott, MSN, RN, CNE; and Regional Dean Janet Stotts, MBA, MSN, RN, who is serving as the interim Assistant Director until the proposed BSN program is approved by the BRN. The Academic Department is led by Abdel Yosef, PhD, RN, CNE, Dean of Nursing, Provost & Chief Academic Officer. In addition, Kezia Lilly, MBA HC, MSN, RN, CFT, SFN, National Dean of Online Programs, manages all online nursing and general education courses.

SECTION 1424(d) – Sufficient Resources: The sufficiency of the physical resources is critical to enabling the nursing program to achieve their mission, goals, and expected outcomes. The resources are assessed regularly and maintained to support quality instruction, hands-on learning, and student success. The resources mirror the layout and design of existing BRN-approved Unitek campuses. The San Jose campus occupies approximately 28,000 square feet and is student-ready for the BSN program. It contains 7 classrooms, 2 basic skills labs, 1 obstetrics and 1 pediatrics simulation lab, Learning Resource Center, 3 conference rooms, student and staff lounges, ADA compliant testing rooms, and administrative offices. Unitek has secured an additional 12,000 square feet suite at 6850 Santa Teresa Blvd, Suite 20, providing for a Simulation Center with 2 Medical-Surgical Intensive Care Unit, Pediatric, and Obstetrics simulation labs and patient rooms. This expansion will also include a Virtual Reality lab and an Active Learning Classroom. Construction of the additional space will be completed before students begin the on-ground component of the curriculum. Nursing classrooms have up-to-date technical support in the form of LCD projectors, computers, and screens. Faculty and students use a variety of student support services and media to communicate with student support. Computer resources are available to all students. Students have access to various databases for evidence-based articles as well as word processing and spreadsheet application software.

Faculty and Staff: Unitek maintains appropriate personnel staffing levels in proportion to the student population, ensuring sufficient resources to support program delivery and



compliance with BRN standards. Academic support personnel include a dedicated NCLEX success support team (Licensure Success Director, NCLEX Success Specialists, and Licensure Coaches), Clinical Coordinator, Administrative Assistant, Simulation Technologist, Test Proctor, and Clinical Partnership Development Specialist. Faculty are supported by Faculty Development Specialists, Programmatic Trainer, and Faculty Success Coaches. The program will be supported by student support services, including Campus Director, Admissions, Financial Aid, Registrar, Business Office, Student Persistent Specialist, Student Wellness, and Career Services.

SECTION 1424(e-f) – Assistant Director: Janet Stotts, MBA, MSN, RN is the interim Assistant Director (Dean). Ms. Stotts meets the requirements of the BRN, will dedicate sufficient time for administration of the program, is knowledgeable and current regarding the program and the policies and procedures by which it is administered. A full-time Assistant Director will be hired for the proposed BSN program, and an EDP-P-03 form will be submitted for BRN approval.

SECTION 1424(g-k) – Faculty: Faculty engage in program policy development, program implementation and outcomes, and evaluation of all aspects of the program. Additional faculty who meets the BRN requirements will be hired, consisting of 3 full-time instructors and 23 part-time/per diem nursing instructors. Unitek has 107 general education instructors as well as a faculty pool of BRN-approved BSN instructors to provide on-call coverage as needed. Unitek will onboard and train faculty at least two months prior to the start of the course. There is a qualified instructor (content experts) in each of the areas of nursing: Geriatrics, Medical-Surgical, Mental Health/Psychiatric Nursing, Obstetrics, and Pediatrics. Resumes and EDP-P-02 forms have been submitted for each content expert. The teaching assignment and hiring plan have been summarized in the Nursing Curriculum and Clinical Facilities (EDP-P-11) form.

SECTION 1424(k) – Clinical Student/Faculty Ratio: The BSN program maintains student/faculty ratios in clinical settings that ensure patient safety and support effective learning. During clinical practice, on-site-faculty supervision is mandatory with a ratio of 1:8 instructor-to-student or as required by the clinical agency; 1:10 instructor-to-student in the skills lab. Each clinical site is evaluated to ensure it aligns with the program goals and outcomes and the specific course goals and outcomes.

SECTION 1425(a-f) – Faculty Qualifications: All faculty, Director, and Assistant Director will hold active, unencumbered RN licenses and meet the minimum qualifications in CCR § 1425. Their education, licensure, direct patient care, and teaching experience will be verified. Faculty Approval/Resignation Notification (EDP-P-02) will be submitted electronically through the BreEZe system. Changes in faculty, roles, or teaching areas will be reported to the BRN using the required forms before hire or within 30 days of the change. All faculty will maintain current nursing practice expertise and content competency through ongoing professional development and continuing education.



SECTION 1425.1(a-d) Faculty Responsibilities: The responsibilities of full-time nursing faculty include teaching excellence, evaluation of students, planning and implementing curriculum content, scholarship, and service. Faculty members conduct scheduled office hours related to student advising, NCLEX-RN coaching, and engage in curriculum development or revision. All new faculty receive orientation upon hire with the faculty performance management team, including programmatic course training. On-ground faculty are paired with mentors and complete a 3-month mentorship program. To maintain clinical recency, faculty engage in clinical practice. Faculty participate in external part time employment in paid clinical practice, volunteer work or consultation relevant to their specialty areas. Faculty may also participate as committee lead on the Curriculum Committee, Outcomes Committee, Simulation Workgroup/Committee, Sigma Theta Tau International (STTI), the Institutional Review Board (IRB) or efforts in the community.

SECTION 1426(a-g) – Required Curriculum: The BRN-approved BSN curriculum meets all requirements in CCR §1426. The BSN program is 3-years completed over 144 weeks with three 16-week semesters per year. Theory and clinical practice are concurrent across all mandated nursing areas. Units and instructional content comply with specified minimums, and evaluation tools align directly with the course objectives. The curriculum meets the minimum 500-hours direct patient care as required by the BRN. Unitek maintains and publishes a written policy for previous education credit or other acquired knowledge in nursing through equivalency, challenge examinations, or other approved evaluations, including military experience.

The BSN program upholds stringent evaluation policies and procedures that are consistent, equitable, and reflective of the educational objectives and outcomes to evaluate a student's academic progress, performance, and clinical learning experiences. The evaluation methods and rubrics are designed to monitor and foster student achievement across all aspects of the nursing curriculum and are outlined in the course syllabi. Faculty evaluate students based on specific course objectives, expected student outcomes, and overarching program outcomes. The grading scale is integral to ensuring that the assessments are standardized and that all students are held to the same high standards.

SECTION 1426.1(a-c) – Preceptorship: The BSN Transition to Practice and Capstone courses are BRN-approved, and the preceptor selection process is in accordance with Title 16 CCR § 1426.1. Unitek's BSN Program Preceptor Handbook outlines all the responsibilities and expectations of the preceptor role, qualification requirements, and includes structured orientation, clear communication protocols, defined roles, and thorough recordkeeping for all preceptors. Preceptors are responsible for mentoring nursing students by orienting them to the facility, guiding learning to meet course objectives, tracking clinical hours, communicating with faculty, and evaluating student performance.

SECTION 1427(a-d) – Clinical Facilities: Unitek currently has 42 clinical affiliation agreements, all are compliant with BRN regulations. A matrix demonstrating the



agreements' alignment to CCR 1427(c) (1-6) sections has been provided with this self-study. Unitek has 33 approved Program Clinical Facility Authorization (EDP-P-18) forms for the BSN program, 9 has been submitted to the BRN for approval. A list of all clinical facilities, including names, addresses, and how they meet the required clinical experiences is included.

All clinical sites are evaluated to ensure they align with the program goals and outcomes and the specific course goals and outcomes. During the initial evaluation and during program meetings, the Assistant Director (Dean), clinical coordinators, and lead faculty work closely with the clinical affiliation team to determine that the sites are meeting or exceeding the program goals and outcomes. Clinical experiences directly relate to the mission by preparing graduates who can work in diverse settings with patients throughout their lifespan. In addition, clinical sites provide the opportunity for interdisciplinary relations.

Unitek has analyzed clinical placements outlined in the EDP-I-01 forms and determined that the BSN program will not negatively impact existing clinical placements. An Academic Collaboration Form is included.

SECTION 1428(a) – Student Participation: Students have an active role in the governance of the program through the Student Representative process. Class Representatives are elected by the class at the beginning of the program and are the voice of the class in all matters concerning the program and the college. Student Representative meetings are held monthly with designated student representatives from each cohort and the Assistant Director (Dean) to address the needs of each cohort and student. Concerns and recommendations from students are addressed at Faculty Meetings, and answers are brought back to the Student Representatives.

SECTION 1428.6(a-b) – Policies Related to Establishing Eligibility for Examination: Unitek has established policies and procedures when validating graduates for licensure. Unitek submits to the Board, at least four weeks prior to the established graduation date, a roster of students' names and their expected dates of program completion. The roster is verified by the Assistant Director (Dean) and goes through a multi-step review. Any discrepancies are resolved prior to submission. The college will immediately notify the Board by telephone or e-mail of any student who fails to maintain eligibility, ensuring they are deemed ineligible to take the licensure examination.

SECTION 1429(a-c) – LVN 30 Semester or 45 Quarter Unit Option: Unitek's college catalog outlines the policy offering LVNs a pathway to RN licensure by completing thirty semester units of qualifying nursing coursework and clinical practice to be eligible to apply for the examination for licensure as a RN in California. After successful completion of the general education courses (totaling 10 units) there are core nursing courses (19 units) which must be completed to meet California's 30-Unit Option requirements.

SECTION 1430(a-b) – Previous Education Credit: Unitek maintains and publishes a written policy in the college catalog for previous education credit or other acquired knowledge in nursing through equivalency, challenge examinations, or other approved evaluations, in



accordance with 16 CCR 1430. Evaluations are conducted for institutions accredited by agencies recognized by the U.S. Department of Education or Council for Higher Education Accreditation, with transfer credit awarded for courses completed with a grade of "C" or higher, subject to program-specific requirements. Advanced placement for qualified military medics is available upon validation of licensure and competencies. Transfer credit determinations are documented in the student's official record, and tuition is adjusted to reflect only scheduled courses.

SECTION 1431(a-c) – Licensing Examination Pass Rate Standard: Unitek is committed to maintaining a NCLEX-RN first time pass rate above the minimum 75% required by the BRN. Unitek's nursing programs had an 88% NCLEX-RN first-time pass rate for the BSN program in 2023/2024 and 86% in 2024/2025. Unitek is aware of the need to complete a comprehensive program assessment if the pass rate falls below 75% for first time candidates in an academic year. The college will devise an action plan and implement corrective measures immediately if internal benchmarks for pass rates are not met.

Conclusion: The strength of the BSN program lies in Unitek's reputation for collaboration, partnership, and building strong, positive relationships with existing nursing programs. Unitek is committed to respecting established clinical rotations, avoiding displacement, conducting proactive outreach, and responding immediately to any concerns. The college has built a strong regional reputation for delivering quality healthcare education, maintaining academic excellence, and supporting student success.

Unitek offers a wealth of student resources, including NCLEX coaches and specialists, a full ATI partnership with NCLEX preparation tools, student persistence specialists, and academic tutoring. The BSN curriculum is standardized across all Unitek campuses and emphasizes both NCLEX preparation and the development of safe, competent nurses.

Faculty development is also a priority. Unitek invests heavily by offering programs such as Certified Nurse Educator (CNE) training and certification, Caritas Training, MSN degree support, and pathways to help faculty earn their DNP. Faculty also benefit from Unitek's annual academic conference, which keeps them at the forefront of healthcare education and provides continuing education credit. The program will continue to expand access to diverse and high-quality clinical learning experiences, increase simulation lab resources, and enhance faculty recruitment and development to sustain a robust nursing education program. Looking ahead over the next eight years, Unitek will further strengthen nursing faculty quality, enhance student and instructional resources using the latest data-driven tools and technologies, improve facilities, and continue refining the curriculum to ensure it remains current, relevant, and aligned with nursing standards. These efforts will ensure graduates are equipped with the confidence, knowledge, training, and support needed to thrive in the dynamic nursing profession.